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Independent Auditor's Report R Sk ailaden

To the Members of
DMI Finance Private Limited
Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited (“the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group") and its associate, which comprise the consclidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022, and the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies ("the consolidated
financial statements”) and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and associate
referred to on the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at 31 March,
2022, of consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Respansibilities
for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAIl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For We have determined the matter described below to be

the key audit matter to be communicated in our report:

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

(a) Impairment of financial assets as at balance sheet date (expected credit losses)

Ind AS 109 requires the Holding Company to
provide for impairment of its loan receivables
(designated at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income) using the
expected credit loss (ECL) approach, ECL involves
an estimation of probability weighted loss on
financial instruments over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the credit
quality of the Company's loans and advances. In
the process, a significant degree of judgement has
been applied by the Management for: Staging of
loans [i.e., classification in 'significant increase in
credit risk' ('SICR") and 'default’ categories];
Estimation of behavioral life; Determining macro-
economic factors impacting credit quality of
receivables; Estimation of losses for loan

products with no/ minimal historical defaults

Read and assessed the Holding Company's
accounting policies for impairment of financial
assets and their compliance with Ind AS 109 and
the governance framework approved by the Board
of Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of India
guidelines,

Evaluated the reasonableness of the Management
estimates by understanding the process of ECL
estimation and related assumptions and tested the
controls around data extraction and validation.
Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on
their past due status to check compliance with
reguirement of Ind AS 109.

Tested a sample of performing (stage 1) loans to
assess whether any SICR or loss indicators were
present requiring them to be classified under
higher stages.

Assessed the additional considerations applied by
the Management for staging of loans as SICR or
default categories in view of Company's palicy on
one-time restructuring.

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions and
underlying computation. Assessed the floor/
minimum rates of provisioning applied by the
Holding Company for loan products with
inadequate historical defaults.

Tested assumptions used by the Management in
determining the overlay.

Assessed disclosures included in the standalone
financial statements in respect of expected credit
losses

(b) IT and system controls

Financial accounting and reporting processes,
especially in the financial services sector, are
fundamentally reliant on IT systems and IT controls
to process significant transaction volumes, hence
we identified IT systems and controls over financial
reporting as a key audit matter for the Holding

Company.
Automated accounting procedures and IT
environment  controls, which include IT

governance, general IT controls over program
development and changes, access to programs
and data and IT operations, are required to be

We tested the design and operating effectiveness
of the Holding Company's IT access controls over
the information systems that are important to
financial reporting and various interfaces,
configuration and other identified application
controls,

We tested IT general controls (logical access,
changes management and aspects of T
operational controls). This included testing
requests for access to systems were reviewed and
authorized.




Key audit matters [ How our audit addressed the key audit matters

designed and to operate effectively to ensure | We tested the Holding Company’s periodic review
reliable financial reporting, of access rights. We also tested requests of
changes to systems for approval and authorization.
In addition to the above, we tested the design and
operating effectiveness of certain automated
controls that were considered as key internal
controls over financial reporting.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

» The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's report.

= Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

= In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

= When we read information included in Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under
SA 720 'The Auditors Responsibilities relating to other infarmation’.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the
requirements of the Act, that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group including its associate in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associate to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate.




Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by Management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue
as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the
Group and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors,
such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that ware
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other matters

1.

We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries whose financial statements reflects total
assets (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of Rs. 751.45 millions as at 31 March, 2022, total
revenue (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of Rs. 144,56 millions for the year ended 31 March,
2022, net profit after tax of Rs. 47.00 millions for the year ended 31 March, 2022 total comprehensive
income of Rs. 47.59 millions for the year ended 31 March, 2022 and net cash inflow of Rs, 238.73
millions for the year ended 31 March, 2022, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Results. The
Statement also include the Group's share of net loss after tax of Rs. 3.57 millions for the year ended
31 March 2022 total comprehensive loss of Rs.3.57 millions for the year ended 31 March 2022 as
considered in the Statement, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not been
audited by us. The financial statements of these subsidiaries and associate have been audited by
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Board of Directors and our opinion on
the Consolidated Financial Results, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries and assaciate, is based solely on the report of such auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

The comparative financial information of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March, 2021 were audited by predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
apinion on those consolidated financial statements on 03 September 2021.

Qur opinion is not medified in respect of abave matters.




Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1.

(f)

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial staternents and the other
financial information of the subsidiary companies and associate companies, incorporated in India, as
noted in the ‘Other Matter' paragraph we give in the ‘Annexure A’ g statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and
associate, as noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that,

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial

statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), and the Consoclidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31 March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries and associate, none of the directors of the Group companies
and its associate company is disqualified as on 31 March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Group and its associates and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in 'Annexure B’.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the report of other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries and associate, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and
associate to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 187 of the

Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries and its associate as noted in the 'Other matter' paragraph:




iv.

(a)

(b)

(c)

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate— Refer Note 45 to the con solidated
financial statements.

The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts — Refer Note 45 to the consclidated financial statements.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the other
auditors of such subsidiaries and its associate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any such subsidiaries and its associate to or
in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and its associate (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. Refer Note 53 to the consolidated financial staternents.

The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and its associate
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and its associate shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Refer Note 53 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and
associate which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act , nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ji) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.




v.  The Holding Company and its subsidiaries and its associate have not declared or paid any
dividend during the year and have not proposed final dividend for the year

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:000050N/N500045

<
5
Vinesh Jain

Partner
Membership No.: 87701

UDIN: 22087701AJHJIV4341

Place: Gurugram
Date: 20 May, 2022




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of DMI Finance Private Limited on the financial
statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, and based on the consideration of reports of auditors in respect of subsidiaries and associate, we state
that the qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their reports on Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the Consolidated Financial Staterments are:

S. | Name CIN Holding Company Clause number of the
No. Subsidiary/associate | CARO report which is
qualified or adverse
1 Appnit U72900UP2014PTC063266 | Subsidiary Clause iii (a) to (f), iv, vii
Technologies (a) and ix(a)
Private
Limited

For 8.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:000050N/N500045

&
Q@S&/

Vinesh Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 87701

UDIN: 22087701AJHJIV4341

Place: Gurugram
Date: 20 May, 2022



Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding company as of and for the
year ended 31 March, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of DMI Finance Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company”) and its
subsidiary companies and its associate, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Holding
Company's business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of the
Holding Company's assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate as aforesaid, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




3. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

8. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Holding Company; (2) provide reascnable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Holding Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Holding Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Holding Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associate, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively
as at 31 March, 2022, based on internal control over financial reporting criteria.




Other matter

Audit reports of three subsidiaries and one associate does not include Report on the internal financial controls
with reference fo financial statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act (‘the Report
on internal financial controls'), since in their opinion, the said report on internal financial controls is not
applicable to these Companies basis the exemption available to these companies under MCA notification no.
G.S.R. 583(E) dated 13 June 2017, read with corrigendum dated 13 July 2017 on reporting on internal financial
controls over financial reporting. Our report on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in respect of these subsidiaries and associate are based on Management assessment of the internal controls
over financial reporting as furnished to us by the Management,

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:000050N/N500045

&
>
Vinesh Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 87701
UDIN: 22087701AJHJIV4341

Place: Gurugram
Date: 20 May, 2022




DI Finance Private Limjted
Consolldated Balanco Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All Amount In fs. In millians, unless otharwise statad)

ASSETS
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents
4ank balance other than cash and cash irquivalants
Trade recalvables
Loans
Invesiments
Other financlal assats
Tolal financial nzsnts

Mon-linanclal assets
Currant tax assels [ret)
Deflerrad tax ssats {nat)
Property, plant and equipment
Capital wark In peogress
Goodwill
Right to use assets
Qther Intangible assats
Othar non- financlal assets
Total non-financlal assots

Assets held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

LIAIILITIES AND EQUITY.
LIABILITIES
Finaneial Mabllitiea
A) Trada payables
{1} total outstonding dyas of micra entarprses and small enlorprizes
{il] tatal autstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
fi) Other payahles
) total autstanding dues of micra entargelses and small anlerprises
() tetal cutstanding dues af creditars other than micia enterprises and smalt
anterprises
Debt speurltias
Barrowlings {ather thon debt seeidiios]
Laasa liabilities
Gthar financtal Nabilities
Tatal inanclal Nabies

Non financlal llabllitles
Provislons
Qther nan-financial labilities
Total nen-financial llabilitlas

EQUITY
Equily share capital
Other aguity

Equity attributable ta vqulty sharehelders of the company
MNon Contrelling Intarest

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Sea aceampanying notes farming part of tha ronsolidated financlal statement.

In terms af our réport attachred

For .M. Bhawan & CO LLP
Firm Registration No. DOCOSON/MS00045
Chartered Agtayntants

3

Vinash laln
Partner
Merhershlp No. GR7701

Flace: Mew Daihi
Date: 20 May 20022

Notes  Asattarhai, 3823 Asatiiaren 31,2021
i 6,829.64 25330
5 194,66 167.21
6 61.03 62.1)
7 45,301.15 31,097.73
8 10,289.57 18,551.05
3 161008 2,037.35

65,085,13 5,549,36
10 296.13 13247
1 BEO.14 £33.87
12 104,64 116.23
13 23.27
bt 251.53
15 234,55 21071
16 a1 22.80
17 04,91 103,27
z.020.98 "_:.'Egi'
18 143,84 189,35
611,15A.99 56,058.56
19
94.79 110.75
697.23 416.80
13
379.87 228,80
0 18,552.27 18,551.69
n 1,988.07 1,181.19
22 276,36 242,29
23 16287 158.33
29,151.46 20,003.85
24 B6,60 57.50
% 103,51 4806
190,11 105.56
26 6,567.00 6,436,58
27 2,121.28 57
38,688.29 35,083.15
28 2913
I8,717.42 35,063.15
S— A . SE050.5E

For and on behall of the Board of Directars af
OMI Finance Privata Umitad
Cif: U659290L2008PTC1R 749,
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shivatfish khatiarjea
(31 Managiny Direcior)

DIN: 02623460

Flage: New York
Uate: 20 May 2022
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Bl Finance Private Limive:d
Consalidated Statemant of profit and tass for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All Arnaunt In 5. In milllans, unfess otherwlse stated)

Forthe yoarended  Farthe year anded

Notes
Moreh3L 2022 Mareh 31,2024
Revenue from operatlons
Interesi ncame 9 7
E H3741
Fugs and Lanimission Insame 10 23525 G'S;JG_';:
Net zain on fair vslue changas 1 6340 AT 3
Tolal revenue fram sneratlons - _FB.‘MU:DI ‘_735_'1 q';‘..
Other intame 32 163.05 1037
Total incame =i 3152‘-3-1 TS!DT
Expenies
Fliance costs 1 151553
Erasand commilssinn sepense 1 Jﬁ??.m l;:;::
Impglrment on financlal instrumenty s 341183 284874
Emplayee bepefits repenie 38 860,77 '70_1'27
Depraclation, amortizalian and impalrmant EH 59,43 79-52
Othar cxornses kL 1,420.34 441 69
Fotal expanses Temm s
Prolit befare share of profit of assoziate and tan B05.21 12110
Tax expensa/ [gredh|:
(1] Current tax a8 £76.15
s J4g.13
{2) Defarred tax 18 3 A 25680}
Incame tax chpense T T nass - 91,13
Hat prafit for the year = 58650 1937
Add; Share of Profit/{Less] of aszociats 13.57) 19,58
et froflt after Taves = 38303 206828
Other comprehznsive Insame
8} iterme thet will not bo reclnsshiled to profic ar fass
{I] Ae-measuremont gains on grafully 130 245
{11} et gaindloss on fole valus of equity instruments theaugh other DI753
camafehensive Incong 5
Income tax relatlng tn ahova {21113] 0.51)
Subtoltal {n) 62770 184
b) tams that will be reclassifted 1o profitor loss
{1} Galn/leas) on Fabr Volue changes ns? 4121
ineame tas relating 1o above item {D:14) (106§
Subtalal {b) 0.43 115
Other camprehensivg Incoma 3 a2817 aan_
Taipl comprahensive incame far th year 1,211,015 437,
Prallt fot the yoar ptirlbutable ta:
Owrarz of tha company 583.03 69.28
Men- controlling interases et i
S | |} S | ;7 |- I
Othar comprahansive Income/{loss} far the yesr altrlbutable Lol
QOwners af the campany 520.12 4358
Mon- cenlrolling interests 5 c
825,11 49
Tatal comprahensive Income/{loss) lar tha year atirbutable o
fwnartaf the comonn 121115 a2
Naon: cantroliing ‘nrarests * b
121115 __driar
Earnings per equity share (face valus of A1, 10 per share) 14
Bagic (Rv] o3 a4l
Dlivted [(Rs.] [11:51 0.3%
Seqace | natat ferating oart of the consolidated fi I stat
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DRI Finanee Privare Umiiad
Statoment of Consalldated €ash Flaws for the Year wnded March 31, 2022
1Al Amaunt In As. In millfans, unless athnrwlse dtate dj

A Cash Nawe fenm oparating setliiog:
Frafit befare 1o

Adjuitirents loe

Lenreclaiion snd amonlsatian

et gain ar lair value changas

Impairment an finanelal Instrumsants

Intefest papense for leamng arrargomanis

Loy Hnansial it

Eifective inteiud rate
Aziet held Tar 3ale wiittan off

Emalayes stach opthon/share warrant mpcnie
Duerating prafit bafare warklag capfial elianges

thanges In woiking cagity)
lincremse] In inancial and othar atsets

‘netgane In finanzial nnd othir laliies

{ingtersel/Decreate in non fataeil sesels

Inzfenie In nan flinancial bl

Tatal of changes In working capltal

Oliact tases pabd (ne af tolunds)

fiet eash flow ganarated fram / (used in} spararing scuvitles ja)

Cosh flow lram Investing activitles;
Inflaw [mutllew) on aceaunt af )

Puichayg of Propeny, phnt and equlpment
finziuding caphal werk-in-prrgross)f intargitie

Basang

Plitchaza ol iInvastment {ret|

Movement of fixed dapults {net]

Fietenth fow fram / [used In| Invesiing activities m)

Cash flnis fiom (inanelng activittes:
Peaxand from lsaue of equlty shares including share prenvium)
Praceeds from debl secusitiay

Froceeds from hank bo-rakings

Bupsymant af das) yecurities

Repayines] of benk borrawings

Luase paymidnts
Fit cash tlow ganerated fran financing aciiyities {c)

Mat Incrensn b eash and cash aguivalants {AsDag)
Cath and cash equivalents an ai the beginping af she year

Cash ind easn squivalents on tha daie &f acquisitien In the wuisldlary
Cosh and cash ngulvalantc a1 tha ond of tha year

Mgles

Companonts of cash and cash agubesicats
Cash on hand
Balanze with banks
In current sreaunts
In carh credit
duroslly vt sriginel matunty 2 less than 3 manths
Tatal cash and eash aguivalents

1

2} Caatfluw sintement has benn preganed Under indirect inethed as 1ol aut in s IND A5 7

Yoar ended

© Tearenden

_ March 31, 2021

51 EFS ]
49,43 1313
(863401 (487 B0}
ER IR 2.4 74
16,03 1Ln2
1278 1581
2507
49 578
1507.m 2,783.97
118,445.42) 12,004.44]
4009 103.21
a2 1) k55
eoce B 4401
{1m026.70) 184851}
—_—iamy (Alnss
115, 240.50) B LY
(60 58] {30.84)
585 7} {2,951.631
- 124 43) e atj
_ mamm
34262 9,791 13
Sog.00
8,872.7a Toaa
: [+, 750 8a)
{Lo75.0a) {7 355 33§
SRR L _ss.m
P 10.000.22 % 183071
4,290,140 147172
FAEER )| P
o 5.63
_ EAgE 25580

ot Fasith 13,7073
oin

4,470 25
124929

160000 I

FEETE

— BNISES

Aot M 1, 3071
ona

174,03
359,80

"Cayh Flow Statermans

3} For didlovara al Investing and fivanelag setnilion ikisi da ol vequlrg ihe uie af cash and cash ee valanis, rafa; ot g

] Wahoe of assers and llaniiliies an seqiiitian af dtibszidlary have been intluded
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[l Finamcs Privatn Limired
Notes to the Consnlidated financtsl Stat ta foe 1he year snded March 31, 2012

1 Carporate Informaiicn
Ol Finases Trivate Uinded o o foyats mited Compang |"The Cutmpine”) sod moorpoeated whider thie diingdasns of tha campanies Aok 3003 Pevdeg Cutpuratie Inestilpation Sumbsr jp (1M}

HIRSAINI JONAFTE 1K) 149 s Sepmlembier 02, 1004

Thie Cotiane b enigaged i ferding 2t vities a3 Bus DanKiog Hrang Compaey INOFC) regula sl by the Brosres Bunk ol int (381 Tre Campany had nbtained its eercn tram Revarye Bk of india
(i) Im operate a3 Mono demodl Acceplig Mo Panling  Fesdial - Company  (NBFCMDBE  an liecaiy 06 2009 wide fegiatration Mo, RBI M~14.0317G
The (lgliling Lipany fegether with i wilistiligeies el i Sete 2eliu) are hereinafter collzctivaly refoeded T as "t e’ Indarmarion o stilnidinsey ineLader in consaliated Hhameial fatemsn

b gaen it et I

The pegisteied office uf thi Company i3 boeated A Expreds Mlding, drd Flear 9-10, Bahadur ShabZale o taw Ulhi

Theiz fimancial slatoments dere dythorlser] for e i arcandanrs with & resililivn of the Nistd of Blreciars an 76 May, W27

2 Nasls ol prep af Fhadnelal

A} Stateinent of compilance
e cxvsakidatid fiearezll satemenis coinply in all mateeal speds wil indian Arcounting Stamrds {'ind A5° ar ‘e Areainiing Stindands’] sutihed wder Seetion 133 af the € o =anies et
2113 {ihe AD) [Comparet {Indian Accuiting Stadard=] Biles, 2015] and aticer felasant pre i o the A

Al amioiint drscloged o the contuhidated Hnanesl sistenisnic s nstes have beon sutnded of] o 1he #erest Bupzes milnaie a3 par b regilvethonts of Schodide ] unlew ofhervwlan rated

ik of praparation and prescatation

The conralidaled finanrial statements have heen irepared o desoidance with Indiwn Arcounting Standaras Jind AS) ax par e Companiss [edian Acenunting Sandards) Rules | 1074 & amiended

freamm timie 12 Vime and aatified urder seetion 133 6 Conipanies Atr, 2013 {the 2] along aith cther relsvant proviians of the A4 and the ftader Directian - HonBanking-Haancs Camping
temically Imoartant Mo Depaiit teking Campame and deposit Gling sampany [esetie Lank) Dlractiang, 2018 {1he N00C Marta Tirections") isuzd by ML The financisl statorm anls haye

been plenared un s gong cancarn bas,
The Gralm had areparea Iis firangial staloments In acoer dance will acczunting standasds wid under soction 133 of the Companies ack 2013, vl 1ogether wotli gurageach ?of e nmpanie:

{Accaimisl Mules, 2004 i the Comgoanies (Arcounting Staicirds) Aimendnent Mubss, 20006 and the Edusler Dijcotion - Hen-Rarking-Fnancial Cempany Systerucally mpartant j p-Uoposit
Vaking Company [heretnalte? refarrad at ‘provicus GAAR) The isnnal dstemants are prezenced iy ndiah Huzeer [INK) ant 3l velues are iaunded in the millions. &Rcept when wtherwise

indicited

Tie regulatory discimures s requiced by Master Oirechon: for fon-Bianking binangial Compaty  Syatemiesly impartant Hon-Depatit Libing Company Birecticns, 2016 fssued by th= A {'RBI
Minitat Dirextani®] i lie Incladad as 4 pan of the Botes farming pat of $he finaed ol Shatements s propared ac o the regolne ment

o Bashsof meagireman
The lidatat Haareial o, % a2 boon eepsted nn an acorual Basls 35 @ gelng fenton and ndar the Rlsturlcal 2e3l sememtion mazeph fi e asaets and lamitier mead wl ol lair

value ax fmdlgus:

asrtai Peasehal dsiets and kablitios and aoniingent conside fatuem iz meavarod al bl value;
asprts neld far sabe — measured al falr walun less cost lo sell:

sbefined bereiil plass - plan a2 5ets meaiwiod ot Lo cabie and

shipre-branetl payrients — memanr=d at 120 vilie

dl  Presedtavan ol fnanslal statements
TheGran) resents s Balines shieot in eeder il lnulality. Flnaneial auvets and bnanzial labiiies e gy saported grass in the balinee shest |hey arm =nly atlee and repornd A when, in

Additin ta having sn uncarditioral legl v enforceatl= vl in olfsel the recagrized amoims « thaul baing saringent o 3 futuri dvent, tha aartiey sles Intend to seitle on & not Hads s 3l of
thitr Tolluwelng circumatancay

# I raemil courve of husiness
* Thir avvirn | al At
= The suani ol insolvency or bankiuptey ol ine Campany sndfar it wilinferphities

e} Punciplas of Cumalidation
1] Subsidiarlaz
Whe canzatizaied Hinanglal statements M ve Licen prepar e on the following hatis
Cronip by eonleol The Grous conteals an ey wdst e Giban i Je sapariad by ar hus bt i, variable retumns from il manlyement with the 2htity drd han the abllity to gtfact e #etin:
Aheugh i poder aver the entity. Sabairdiaries are 1lly congelil sted frzm the-date on which conteal 1§ tFamslersed tn thy Group and Crises (e bie comelidated when ihe Graug lsses cant ol of the
Subridary Fully cormodidated means recopgsmon ol ke lema of 2w liabiliting, exully, |Aeoric and eapene Thare stter the postan of nat pralil o Tnst gl ety e segregaled botwisa Lhg
Seuiep's vhare aned share of porcanteollinh siakeFaldoe:
Intet 2empany braniactisnz, halances and unredlised fans on tranaacbians batwran the Group comparice are chminated Uirealiseil liises are atsm stimiated i s b s griit an oitm e sl
of oo When necess sty joolints reperted by sobvdiaris s e heen sitfuited Lo eadarm b ths Groun's accaunling polizien

Yl Invastment fn Asociates
Adsusiate inciudda all sptities where the Greup has the power to exercize 3 stgalicant Influgnes. Sgrificant inflence is the g o participte i e fiacial and e ating pnloy ded) dom o

the inveester but i not conreol af juint eanienl of thase paliciesg

The Graup's invailment in avipclales are sccolled wing the caully methed Goodwll relating ta asocate dided in the carrying valun of the inestments aimd |5 not fosted fue imp et
ssparatcly, Undor equity method of acaunting, th imeostmenty are iilially secordid ot et

and adjusted thereafter ta recognmy the Grrup's thare of gstacquisitien prolt ard fss, and the Group's shatz of athnr comipren v licame Diuldend ragnived from associiles ara rcopnhad
A5 4 pedichion in the carrying amaunt of the invéstments Ureralised gaing 00 transactions between the Grmup amd it associate i sliminateil tn e satant of the GiaUp'E IRTareitin e

wiitities, Lineralird losses e 2l eliciivted il thete is 2 grolil an ultimats sale of geods

At sach tapdrting date, the Group determined whethes thee |z ablactive avidenre that the invoatment i the assaciate s impaicd. 1 thare is surh svidence, Al L ing amount [y besier for

| By camiparing ity reeavurable amaimi (higher of wabie i s and sl b cesty o gell] with s Catiying
arntaunt and ingaliment, 1 any, is recagnised a5 Shiee oF profit/llars) In Araclibes’ in the consalidated statament of profit and losd.

114] Thie eemeliedatod linancrl stateiments maids resuits of the fallnwing subisrdianies ami asseeiate ol thy Halding Conipany, sonialdated in sccardance wih e &5 110 "Canaalidated Fijmn bl

Slatemanie’
Hama af the Campany Country of Incapaistion | Proporiion of ownership 31 0t raporting date Contolldaied s
| DAG Capital Privaie Lsonl alty 109% by
0 Al 10 Subtiiarg
At Bt Limitend by A3 Avioriale
Apprmt Teshnolagies Private Lisited Irdin 4 gt Sulrajskaiy
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[0l Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Canvdlidoted Financinl 5t t1 far the year ended Rlarch 31, 2622
Summary of 1ignificant accaunting policioz
Lize of o4 judp and
i praparation of conialidated linansial stataments » canbnomity wethibe ind AS resilies the rament to make jud Ve id g inptions Thal affedt Ui repior ted =oincs ul

FEETnes, eanemiey, sty and liabihties and D secamnamnme disclsire and the dise lmue of @ anbmgent latilties, af the and =i the 1 yeir tea and undsriving & ollons are
ritwicwed o0 a0 ongang losis Ao in g b #utimates FEEegnited [ the gear in which the sibmateor aro reviad. Alihough thein mibimates sre hased gi the man . peipeet’s begt
Lnewl ooge of Currant events ond aclinny ¥ Ahimit Lrese bdsumnl and estimates could rrsid | in the outromss fediiflng & materisl sjinstment 1o tie cateying smants = aual or
lbatmlih e i futiiee yeurs

i prafticydar, ir ozt gl Atmanaf  nzertainty Al esitical jidgments in applyng ascoumbing polioes ihat hava the mast signifizant sifects an the At ooy
in it fn angial sttepmends o reliodan in the Tofloaing fotes.

i Busioess Moddl Aigesiment

Clauificaion anc mamsuremunt sl finsnchil asset: depends o e feslts of tha Sekely Fayments of Prlricipbe and Interesl (SAR0) and the businiss merdel 1ot Tra Girnup el eninga the
Wiiginess modal al g leeel tha reflecs hiw Grusp's of Knancil arests are ianajel Imfyutizer tis Juhilmye d paiticulin besiners olifgctve M asiessmant inelydar jodgemurnt e lecting ali
felmpanl wsidenee incluiling Lcw the pacfurmancs of the 3550ty 5 ovaiiated dimd ther rerformice medsutgd, the raky et allectthe porlormsnce of B 35288 and how thess g managei
and mow the mandgeis ol The azeiy ae compersaled The Sraup mordors {nanal avants neanred ot anastsesd e oe fale valiee (hough sthar somprebaniive neoms hat arg
adetdtigrilad arlor o Phawr md ity i faderslam tha reannn for fheir dispvial and whethe the reazons s enmainiant with (he ohlective of the buciness far which the anmet wis lild,
HManitering {3 part af the Grep's cantinueus Juesment of whether the bisiness madel Tar which the remaining inancsl ssicts ate el contines (o be afrstnintale and €40 el
aupropriate wheher thore has beon 3 chonge i busipess el ard 3o s praspeciiie change 1o D doadiieinn ol thaie aiiets

I tmpairmont of financial assers
Judgrrent iz raglored Ly maragem o e e estimatlor il the smind i g of bt e Baws wien deter fiiiig an impairmet dllowanes lar inane snd advances Inesfimating dieie
=ava flnwes, the Gronip makies jidjiments abzal ta kierawer's franca) sidation Thags estimates e bised on s mﬁ.m; about a auitbies of fadors wich a5 credil Aitallly, fevelof arreary
ez ol Aozl FeaulIs snay diffar, rowiling in fulive chohgrs 1n the inparment allsaonee Refer nals L1 fa Gnthed idetaiby of e incesaced dpcermiineg felating b the cit—aling of
lipaiererent of lnan perifiolls die 1o the Tt of the pande iz ae 3t Rach 31, 2022

Shara-bated paymnniy
Tatimating i wabis fot thara-bacod PEYTRANT TrANSACTans feyuines deterrumadion of 1he il approprinsle valyation mode!, shich iz degenident an the ternm andd cogeliting ol he giant
s eibmate sl preuees delermiration of the inost sparoprats oty o the valsation neoidal inchyding (i esjiizctad Ut il U shars apiian, volatlity emd siddend yishd a o mabing
avivmplicns about them

Ie.  Fali value of financial |
Thee faie vakie of fisantial inski wmants it the prire that wanld be s eeived Te v an sl or S 1o Bt ler o B oliby iy an atidiily raniaciion in the prlm:.'pre {0 THeat dEvantagenes | matket
at the mesuremend date gnder cuerent market eanditzm Lo the osit price) sogardlis of whather that price i+ dire<ily aisereabin o7 eshimated wiing anathor vehiglian technican, Whan
the fair values of finaneial ssseis imd fimangial hahlities recorded (1 the bulanzo thesl cannal be measurad budeif an quiked prices i active markely, jheir fair dalue it measered uing
satuation techilipses ineluding the Discounzed Cash Flow ("DEE] modal The inputs (e theie inadels are taben Irom dbiarvsbs markets whers possible, But whefs this iz ret casble
degrae al judgement i reauired in witatiishing Gt wslues fudgemanis inchade considerativms of inpats 1t 4 lguisite riak, ernd)t risk and volanfity: Chargre in Armnin g skt ihere
Factnrs coula atfect the regorted fale value of Bnanelal imytruments.

v, Effeetive intaredt fate | 'CIR°) method
Thn Company™s EIH methedclogy, recanrisoyinterost incamie / cxprense wimt & rate of relurn Dhat renietents the best mibimate o 4 cosstant rale al rriurr aver e sapeced bahowarl fife
wf Toatis @leed f Laken and racigelaes e eflenl of polintslly dilferont interel riss 2t varios shagai afied atbier chararterliics of ing product i aycln [ineluding prepayments sl persny

ntefat and chargas).

This estimalici, by rature, pequires an element of judgement teparding the expected behavior and Llg-eya of the makuments, a5 well avprctid chanpes 1o Indla's Base rale andotier e
incamelawmente that Are ifitize? 3 oarly of 5o inslrmant

wi.  Onfined employec Deneflt sssets and liakllitiz
The cost of the deflined henghit pratuity plan and other st snutliyment banc! 1y and the prasent vilue of the gratulty otk gation are debermsined i g actusral valiatlons. Ar setuaral

wanaticn invelves making warious sssnptions i mey 4l Fran schical davebigiiens in ihe futors. Thnes induds 1he Setetimibation of the dircount Fate, fulure dilary inersaser snd
mertalily rates. Gue b0 the complas!tes iwelod in e sahation 30 bt long-term natiins, 3 defined banelit otkgatim i hihly senzitive to thangss (s thete atsumptinny, All asurmations are

revlewid ab ach epaning dale

€ash and cash enuivalents
Far the purnose of presentabss in Uie stalemast ol cash lows, cash anilvash ediitvalents includas cah on hand, depaits keld 22 zall with Hnangial imstitutions, othes short-tarmy, highty liguld

fmusstments with origheal instutitios af thees months or (35 that ara feadily coniartisle io known ameunts of zash and which aes subiect te an inslgndicant ot ol shanges A value, end hank
wégrdrafte. Bank ownrdralic are shownwithin borresings in corrent iabil e i the bilince sheet

Revenue fecognltion

i IniArest ingome
Interest income 15 t=codded nting lie abocis inlurest rate CEIRY) mithod for all financal inriments measured M amartivad ot dobt instiameety measured at fur valie trcamith athar

coipd ehiemalie income FVOCT] anl debi instiiments desTgratedal Lar valus theomah piafit o e PRUPTL),

The {0l {and therefore, the amisilited cost uf the avsats) s the rave that esactly Siscounts the stimated future cash Bgieent o recakply vnr the enpected lile of tin fnanctal ingt sment or
Axfrorher yei, where seprdpeiste, to the gross cierying amaunt uf thi lnaneial asoet The calealation of the eifzetva intarest rata Takes into azcount All catitractdal tarms of the financisl
ivitetiriarnl lur svample, prepayment uftidh) s mzhidas ransaction cogis ang fees that 2fc an trpeal paet of the zantract bul not futdre credlt lsses, TRafiactinn cocs includs
inzremental costs that are dircetly sttrhitabide U the gcquisition el fiaical assel

Wl evgzctalions regamming the cash o én the finanosl mmol arn rovised for reasont elher than eredil risk, the adjisiment 4 recerded a3 4 patiiive or negative adiUstmant to th carring
ameunt of the setin lhe balance thest with an wieeease r cefuctinn in intesest ingoma, The adjagtment is sibisquently wnonised theaigh inlarest Incoas In the Statament of sroilt snd

lase

Thz Campany caleulates intereat incomie by sgplying the B0 12 the grose canying amount of fssseial soety, oibor than cradicmpalred assete erder waga 3_When 3 linanelil aspamhgcomas
cragit-impairad and iy, (Rerelore, rmpirded o Sags 1, the Uompany calculates ihe intarmil 1a the sxiant recoveratile. i ike finanelal nssets cures and i no isnger eredit-imp ired, [he

Cumpany ressrts to alsiliting inlerasl income.

i, intnme other than interest
Aewanuer [ather than for those ilemt 16 whieh b A% 109 Firanctal § are pppbeable] o urgd at fair #alue ol the condidevatian receivad of receivable, Ind A% 115 - Aevenie

from cantracts with cutiainess” cullimes 2 1ingle commrenentive mudel of acesunting Tor revenne 35 frai contsacts wik costomers and wuparteded eurtent rovenu e recognitlarguldanca
found within frd A%
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A, Feeand eammbsion Incame
Al ather Hnancial shargos sih o divgie et dhrges, nga0 arges, olleetinn tharges st are redoguited on rezeial gl These chataes are treated 1o meeuw anrepliZatlm, dne ne
e zptalinty of thoir eeslisation

. Mot aaln/lads on fal vabug chanpes
Any dillerences between the Lir valuee ol Knenga) szets donzibied s fair valis iyough thi meoflt ar s beld Ty the Toroup an the balaice thaot dale n recegnised oo anainrs et
gamfloss W vakss thete iz 3 nal gain n fhe apreRatethe came L socognved W NEL gain an bl vale chdies” under Bavende W om dperalion: and b Shere o5 2 B2 dass me ame o
dizelmyod unger 'Expentes T in the dtutament of profitamd oss

L Other intume

fncame on units af vitial famds i recogired o0 fe2ei i s and whion radesmed s Sach bated fn the MAV &l i8demgtion date, Tha Grode o reengnive galn o T2l valie change uf
utual Fund imeasured 3y PUTRE AT Cthest ingare e i fecnznized o aceinal b ol agenunting princiale

O. oividend Income
Toiwloha il inveernar b recagni i wlvee U Comglany's ight 10 reesive 1he paypment & eitas) e, which s tencrally whin tharchalilers apgsos e il

) Fropechy, plant and cguipment
Pty alant and e g st slalad af sition enat (s icing invidental sspentes diee oty allsihutabla i tringsing tha dadet 1o il warking ol fer (i< inlemtied i) I82s acumtared
Eepraciation and imparment o, 1l any, ol camipnses the purcsin price; nonsreRindable T o Vi, B cadient Lodts IF eapilzlization critera e met and anp attnbusable =opt 3l Lirnijing
e aveat tois watking condition far ity intenided die Silrsengiinnt mapandiore calaied ta FOE i sapiitalized only when o It peebakia thal fulure coosomic sanetiie asyocated With these 1 How o

the Coatpariy st the cust of item zan be meagured roltably Slhar fepais and manendice couls re expenied olf ai ahd whan incarred.

Afi ltem of property, plant 3nd eguipinent am ing sigribiiant pot alkally futagnied 2 dorecognined ipas o bl o when o tuiufe Etanumuc aenelis sre eapeted ffsm i ure or dimponal divy
parin o fasy arivteg an de-tatognillon af tha asst (eatoilated ot e diflerorcn botween the aet illinossl pracgeds and the eirrying amount af the geeet) bs incldal i the watement aiprafie and
lires wehen e assét is deerepnizag ’

®]  Intangible Asiens
{Winrangihin Arzsts ape recopiized enly i7i0 (& prosstile that the Future scammie benstibe har are atiribntably to assats will Mow o the snterprise ard 1ie 2en of Ui suals can Lmeraasured
reliably. Compuler taltware whicn is mot a8 legral part ol She relatad hardware T clsigifiod as an imtangihie 3550t flangible sxiets 3re messuied Sno rerardad ot cost aid catried & cost leiy

eviiilatad qeno s Heption and aceu mulated fovnes, o any

imaten vaetul geoiomibe lile a0 datarminad by mansjenient (he amorieion perigd and the artarization meilivd are feviewad
1 Duriog 4 eharped aceardingly

witangihle 235eTa aie mnartiied an g Siesighl e hass et the
atfeast al macly nancial year ond 1P e sapected uselul Bile of the saet i sig dilfrent fram ¢ extinates, tha

flamnz ar losses arising Iram .In'ei.umilm- af an mitangitla dsasl e iniiibed 5 ihe diffarence betwean the et dirpoual praceecs and the carmpiag amaunt ol thee asset and arc razogieed in the
wiatament of profit and lass whan the azzat iy dejecognized

(it} Goadwiil

el arin/rg on 3 busdness combination repreeniy Ui eiesss of Ui Tale w alise of waruldaratesit sved e Iesbiliabls net et sogiisred, Fail walue ol conssileration repieienis the agiEegdte ol
thez comsiderativ®s U e, a rellatile cstimate of contmdent coralderation payahls, the smesnt of amy nan-canlealing interestin the acquirer and the falr cibiz of sny grevous euwit- infored
Ini the dcgulree on the acquisition date. Met assets segulfed repressnty the fadr valie of the identifiahle

aaserdy agmuirad and Habilites asdumed

Foar the purpae of impaerment festing, gaadwill scguiced n o bunness combinaten 4 allnsated la sach of fhe Sy remEr At units (COU), a7 grojps sf CGUS, 15t 5 espected fa Leret fram he
azquitilion {tself ar from the Synerpies al the cambination orbath, Cadh an'd of group ol unyto wiikc e goudwll] i aliicaied «speasents thi lowart leva within the entity 3t wlieh the goodwil
iy manitored [or el nuanaganisel jueposss.

Ganadw(il is noT Mo sed BLe beited inr impaiem sel, Gl i resn ane nemwerally wiitvrtaan anmadly, The carrying vaiue of the €GO canlaining the

vl s poenibimad bon thar racoesr il amoun, which i3 the Dighes of valun an ur and fhe Ll ilue lozs conie of appasal, Any s i racognied ety
b an wigansa and (1 nat subieaguently ceve red undéss the CEL s Sasalliod an “Assei bebd fui talz® ard thers (s suidenice of reversal dondeill i diitseipirehtly s al emal e 3mo. ois
pravided for impairment

i Depreciation ond amartizarian
Oeprociation
D=peachabing m propeity, plant and squipmant’s ir calealited oo wiilten dnwn i [WOU) bt Dearesialion i providid has oh sl e of the syaste 24 preseribed in Stheduls i io the

Cuvapanted Act, JU13 a2 undart

Particulary usnfyl Life (yenrs)
Furmiiure apu Flsturas 10
vehicly %
Compulst, itinlers 5
Oicz Souipment 5

Leatrehald imprasamants and allied affiee enuipment’s are amartized on 3 iraight-ng hasis ovee uneful ite estimates by mandgemicnt
Salvan Yaluc of the aszets hos been taken Mve pereant af Original Cnil {excap! intamiible ssscts) ax noeveribad in Schedile il
Depreciation an asgett aequiredy snir during the pagiod s fegateed cn 2 pro-cata Lasi (0 the atalemant of profit and los fecmy upra (he date of sesulitan/ wla,

Vhiz residual valims, usetul lives and methuds of dopreciation of progerty, plant 200 e imatl e revisioed af sach Binancia| pedod snd amd ailjuste pros gsstioely, 0 ppop sia

Ameratian
The Inlanghis sisete arm amadtized on 2 st dight liee hases neor the matimated uselal ezanomic e The raun sylimates the ivelul e o an intaigiite ssel will not eeceed fise ynars tam jhe

b whin tka asset iy avallable Toi wse 1] b prrsuative sviienes s ko s affeet thiat winlil ife af an imtangiols asset eacemdi five yars, the Group amortizes the intanpible asce aver the
bavt extimate of its ureful e

B! Impaltment ol hon-financisl assets
The caraarn amaunt of J51ets i reviewid a1 eath balance st date I There s any inbication of impnrmeal Bavail on Fiemalfesternal faginf An imy Ioss 5 rifsad wiy thes
CONYITE 20Ut ol AR Aieet wxconds it libis aineinnt The # tabln amuunt 5 the greater o tha dszety, not salling price and value (7 bae. In anscsing valie in ute, the sstima=d latyre
cath llaiee arg discounton 1o their present vale silng 4 pre Las discoiint rate (hat reflects cierent muarked aeements of e Gne /e ity ant risks speci{ic tu the st (n detere (ning net
wellinig o e, recenl atbet inmantions are taken it aceannt, 1 available 110 soch ftamactione can he flentiled, o apiropiale valustion madel &5 dsed. Afer impaletnent, deprcialicn is
.

mravict e on the revised catiying amannt of the agset aver (ts remalmmt sanful e
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Motes 1n the ©

Leages

Company az 4 lzsiee

The Gromp’'s18a5e 3396t sianser promanly contyt o kases fos o and bufdmge The Group sisein whather o contrac contiim a leie, at incephien of 3 conlrter & donitact (¢, o= cantans,
afearc if the cantract canveys e gt 10 Lontiol the wne f an ideniilind seet lor's foriod ef lims in =schangs t0f cuntidoration. 1o a35ass whether § contiast sanvris fhe figh" 1o caniral
the i ol an ldenlificd assat, (the Orely siseiior whether:

* The custract invalves the use of an identifiod assot

+ ke Graup hag rubitantially all thy ecanamis bansits from ose of e atant theough the penod of the Jeste and

* The firqun hat e vaht e direct, thause ol the axcer

I Meaurement and recagnitlion:
Al leaen commsncamet date, the Geaup Foraghiset a falifuse ave and 2 frase labing on the bulanco vhemt. The right-ofuse 3548t i€ mepairod ab coal, which &5 maile g o the |nital
meaiuiemett &l tha leawe kabilny, any N Cifeel coutz meurred by the Grong, 19 eilfnste of sy rovte to dismants and femave the aniet at thie sef of i braee, and snp leaim maymmni
made in advance 6l (ha l2aee edimmmoement dote (et of 2 ncentives feodied]
The Group deprcuiates the right-af-iae assais on 3 straght-ling haat: fram the legis comiminesmant dabe tn the carlier of the exd =f the wseiyl life uf the righteaf e avvel or i snd of the
Yeuw teem Tha Group akn (358 :4es the Fight ol iz assct foe impaiment s el iticoines sl &1 v G ient shale, e Group mesduies the loaee lablllly 3t Ina poean: valgs
o the lndve payime ks ingaid 4t Lral dale, dicnsintsd aung the interest g gl ol in the ease i hat rate 1 e ity deailabis o the Compaiy’t inefemantal orrowing rate
ik 1 Tan et gl t, the dability wil be redicad far payments maile aicd ineragend for interest it is femensirnd ta rallart any reamsosimant orined ficallan, e o thure are
charges min subsiance fixed payments. Whon the tease laliliyis remedsured, e carosgnrding adfustment o el inihe right-af ize assel, af pralit ard |3 I the right-nf. e ssser is
alteady retuied te b
Shart ferm Leate
Thi Group hat eleeted vt lo fnenpnla <l ol dse arser and leas Kabiliiies f=r shart tarm leasss of wraperty iat fas kease tedin of Tess (hin L manibs. The Graup fecnamiyey leaie
DaNTERT dssudaled veilh thene Imases 45 an exeie ohs s traihl lne b auer e term

M.  Graug 3s alessar:
Au i lwwor the Geoun dasulic (6 icaues 35 aither aparaling or linance feses A& leaie b avalisd as 3 fance leaie i 4 translon substantially 2 the nsbs and rawards mddenial ta
macnmrbin of the iniderylng ssset, and dariliod 4t an anarating (eas i 1 dies rat

Provisions

Pravilant are reccgnived when the Sraun s a piesent obligation (legal ar consliocive] o d fasclt ol 2 pod svant (i i probalie that sin il of resaurces emuudying rronamic seshts will

e ramutirad bo s=iile the obl

b and 3 eeliabin eviimate can femade 26 110 amstnt of the nhiigatin The expenie relating fo any provision bs eescaled in the statemant of orafit amef fozs net

ul any relmbutseiment ste-taaraly that refiscls, when aparegtiate, the fitks agaeliz 1o the hatility Wien dicrmnling iy used, (he increase i he proviion due 1o (he paizage af e Is meognised

an  linaenic e syl

Cantingnnt lishilities and assots

Cantingant iizbilitieg
The Group does st facagiiie & eantingent |l bok disslos=s b5 2eistanis n ks Tnamepl Contingent kablizy w divclazod in the case of:

= & prewent abiligatfan arisng from past esents, when It mal probatie tal an ootflow of rerowces will et be reguired o sentle te ohigetivn
* & prmvent obligation anisimg Iram gast svents, when o relishle sstimate i possilie:
= Aposshile obligalion dfiung Trem pant events, enloss the orobalilitg of wulus of reairs e oremiole,

Contingent babllilies sre resiswedd ot @ack balanze shest date

Cantingent stiut
Eantingent asgels are hol fecegnived A contingenl sviet i disclosed. 35 regquired by o A% 34, whare sn inliow of econine hiref s o gshabie

Employes henalits

i,

Belined contibulian plan
Thie Grunil graifh prddant und soptribibies to gy siboistsn] prosddant fund az por loeal regulations. The trulp has no further payment sbligations crite the canteibi- as Have
bran pakd, The contribuiions are accounted far a2 dofined &oninitbinn plans and the contribinem o rutegnited 23 employes Benchil ongenie when (hey are dus. I e contilmtion
payakin tn the scheme [or servlae feeniviad bofore the hafance sneet dale edcesi the eanbibition already pabd, e defiut gavalile to e selsme i reciizeil 3% 3 Halslliy after dedicting
thet contiMitin sliesaly pabd IF e conbiluiios ajready pai excostds the cantibution dun inr ey receiid nelats thn balancs anoed date, then deeads i raeognitnd 24 an aset 1o the

estent (04T thy pre-payment will (=30 10, for eaample, & reduction in Titurn paymeant ar 3 tash feldid

Dafined benelitplan
Tha plan provide: for (Ump sum paymasis T emalzyers upan dealn whils in e ploy af o wnpatation from

b L aft=f scteng Inr the igulsled years mentianed c=dor ‘The
Fayment ol Graluity Act, 197" Linhilitier waith rogard 1o the Gratuity Flae afe detetmined by actuarial valuanion at ey Balanie St date wuing e Sraes el Ui Credis Mathnd

Hempatements, comprising of atuarbl gan amd losem, the witect of iha aset onving, extiding amounts inclided in net interest on st et defined aenefit lakiliy and the retue ad plan
azsots [eacluding amountk inchided in oot intorect an the net defined enelit habilly], arn recagnised immediately ' the kalande theet with 3 comespunding debit o erndit o ratalned
marnings thraugh GO inthe year 0 which they sowr, Aemsadirsmients azs il reclasfied fo piofit of kit inoksmpsent years,

Pt fefvize senl are rezagnioed in statermant of Brofit or 'l on the sathar il: The sinty of the plan amendment or urtalimens, and tha date thal 4 Graup jac telatact ring
<ats

Hek Intarest by calctated by appiving the divzaunt rate to toe et delined benefit bability ot asiot The Sroup recogeiées e falluwing chamgs in e et delined esfic chligeden ay an
seperis inthe walrmant of peofit and oo Service £orts camprialng current servize cots, past-serdes costs, gaimi and lowes an ou aivd famimnts; and Mek interect

wkfienag or noome

Compensated absonces
Entitlemants 1o urmial l=nve are incognied whin they acerue te the cmplayee: Lesvn entiticmants con be availed whils in yarvics af ploy et subloel tn i an the

! The: Groyp determings the |labiity for vach accumulatid f2ave entitlaments an e Eas of aciaril valuation eairied ral by un indngensia) artyary a e Yeir

numther ol
il
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Foreign currencies

lin preparing the gon ol idated lnanclsl talemente, iramnsactiom, i cuprest e othie i Ui e ity fun stinnal ey ffateen cufvenc] are rmengnied a7 the 1ates of escinge prevaling s
Ahie ifates of e fiaiadiliond, &1 the wnd ol aath aiting petiad enelasy Maind denerabsd o fnca s corencies aic £zitamiated at the rates prevaling 4t 1hat dale. Nen-rrvoi=ary ilnma
<arijed At faif ealue thet Afe denpmdnated ininregn oerrencas are feltamslated o the rates crovaiing Al e date when the fnir wahis we determined Bk tri e a=y llems that ars=m swred n
Tetmi ol htslorizal coat i o foreign currency Jre not et ato | '

Exchange diffsicnery an monglary Tems Jre recognis=d I Brafit of b fnthe petisd in which they anse

Famea

Tax sapenss camfirties cutrent and deferren L The inCome Lax exprinse at Codit far the porios i the (33 payable Co v Lisable inerme ol 1 firrant perlod based oh the appleamle | ssine tay
rates ardpintinl by changes nadefaresid tas aets and babibities attnibiviasle o temprrary diffsrenv=s aoi inised G o

Curtant fax

Cuiteit tas i ineasured ol hn amourl sspaciad 1o be paid o the tas suThalitien in accordance walls Uy Tncome tas Abt, 1961 enartcd In rdin and lax e prevalling 1 the respsclive L
feridiclions whato thn Graup sperales. Thie 13 ralies and Lo L used o campite the amount afe thase AL are enarted or sbhstantively enacted, 3t e fouretimg dale, CUrrent |- cume G
relating o iterns recognaeeal difezily i egily (3 eeeogr e m eauity and not in the satem nt of oiclit and lou

Ooferred tax
Oeferred tass rafiest the impict of timing dilferances hotwean trahle icon o aid Scennling rieame niginating during the cunent year ard ravsesal of timing differences for Ui i yelrs

Defeteci fan b moasired iing the G eatrs and fhe G s snacied o sulistantively snactad 3t the reporting ale: Delotted income Tax rolating to items redegiized dlrcetiy Ir equity is

tezapniied i ety and pol i= tha statamant ol prah L sl lads
Unferend i latilities are rocognized for all 1sabils tming dilérorieey Oalemad o avsete are secugnied for dodustible timing dilfarences only 1o e eetani that thers is reagonbds ceminily

that mufficlent filure tasable ingeime will b ivailalde st whilch such defeersd s asasts can Le realised.
At each raperiing date, the divun re-atsnen anreragrized deferrad 13y 355618 1t retagnitos unrorspnised defurrsd Lok a5set 18 The edtent bhal [t har hecoms reaionzhly tentain o virtoally
eflan, a1 the zise may by, that yuificient futine bl ncome will be vallible againit which sach deferred te 38360 can be eeallied

The: carrying amaunt of delofred Las azsetz aro revwed 31 =ach reparting daie. The Graue whilc: dosn the carying aTiaubt of deferred tos et 37 the sxient that il 15 no I rasaiably
<erlain, thnl sulliciant lutere Taeable income wall lie avaiani= aainat hch deferrod Lar aviel can be rsalire | Aiiy Sl @ile- i |4 prgemsed In the srient shat i Becsmes roatnnably s=riain, ot
the case may be, that sulficispt furuds Lasdbls ifgaine vl be zvilahin .

Defmernd Lax avusts antd defnrrnd Lae ahiilies are a'izer. 3 legally enfoteeabie tiaht oo{Is in Sel-alf corent 135 385ets Bg3nal ufunt 1ae habiliting and the delerred tie stzotle anc delered
taset relabe (o Lie 2ame E3waBin SANES R0 I0E L TawAlidn U sty

Earning par share

Daz'c sarnings pre share s caleilatedd b adividing e oet profit of fis atfributalile 1o ety shiribnldens af e @y (i deducing prefarones dicidends and 3l e tawes) by i
mighted avarage numiner of egulty teres autstanding duning U gevisd

Partly pakd enuity shares sz reated asa faction af 2 equity siare Lo the edent teat they sre eatilled to partlcipate b aivibenls rebaiive G s (il ad =ity share dieng the repor & emrld,
Ther weigited avoriger mimbser of souily snares oulstnding dinig e famod s adisstial e svnnts such 2y sharod hased payments, banus v, baoyy alement in 3 rights l5se, shaces i, ond
reversn share split {consalidation of shars:] thet Rave thanged The numberal equily thares aulstanalng, withoul a 1 ,,r'hnﬂ-s!in FERINTIES

For the pirpese of coloulating dilured cafmingd pes dlre, tha net pofil or ko e the peiog Siratbe 1o iy shiveholders 6f i groap ani Wis weighted averane mumbar 9 shafes
anitaraciling during e pefod ane adjrstiod for Gie offosi of 2l diotive poisntial sqity shares,

Finaneiatinttrumants
A Tnancial instoument 5 0y contrist thal wiin ¢i4e to a linancial sirel of one anlity and a fnancial bty & eguity ikitrurment af arathar matity
I Financlel Assets

£, Inlelal rizcogalilon and e surein
T financial anset (e bkl wil hin 3 Baginess mede! with the abjretia fo collect eenttactial cash fiois and (he contracual tefme of this firancil st gt an apgeibed dates 1 sch Hewa

thit ave solely paymante of prizcmal and ialzroul (SFP1) an (he prncipal amennt gitstanding

Fimanctal izels, with the esception of leans ard sdvances (o customart, seainilially recognived an the Irace date, | ., Use il Thal the Uroup soonmen 3 party to tha canractial prowsms
of the il trumment. Loiay aid ad fa euttamars ara racognisad when funds are o i The el ien uf financial at inltlal recogniricn depends an their pusne ind
charscteritics and the genrant's intentlin when acquring thim .

Acerrdingly, Iha Groop measires bank halances, lnang 400 sdyane o 1230 iecaivabiles aird athnr financlal instrumants 31 amortices et

B Classification and subsegiiant measursment
The finantial assot at amortised Lo ul Iy moa d al e eogbusing eusiive intarest metho. The amaiiised cent 2 fodiisod by Impalrment loses, Interest inecms, feioign
erchame gair and lovies and imzpirmant sen roengnised in slatement of profitand lois Any 2aln and ke enderecogniVan ic recopnbed in statement of prefiz and loss

Faf the pUrpose of sUlsEqUent e ement, Fnatel 32iets 60 davulind in thren caloecries
* Debl instiument at arottived casl

* Dbt livtedrment ot fai- valus theough ather comprshisnsivs income (FVTOCH

+ Ukl imstrument and =quity insiroments ak fair valise theasgh profis et sl PETPLY
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Cieh instriments at amaitised coits
4 dighhl nctruinent’ iz meatered At e aifiebicd teat Tt The [ntimeing camdbion g mat

» The auanbis helf within 3 business model whose chlective 15 10 hild 533814 fa® s ulecting santracinl camn Tieved, Al

* ATl terfis f e assut gram i on anee e 3t to el (s tat 3ve ey payments of princial ad in et (3991] o fhe 51l Smeuns Ssasding

Altgz initial messuramen), such lsdneal siet st sumequantly mezsel at et su laeivgg Wbl fecrive interest vata [EIN) mmthi tecs imnairinens. Amoitisdd cott b5 cakulated [
faRInE it accuunt af dicaunt or prominm on aeguigien and feut or 2uits that are an integral naet of this EIR The Bl smartiuation 13 inelideg i Hileros (neoms i the saterna +af profl
or loss. The bosses arsing from iinpainnent aie recognived it the stalement ol profit sid o

Oubt instrumants at FYTOCH

Ardabtinstiument’ i clasilind sz 3t the FYIO00T Loth of the iailesing ertorinar met

= The obpective ol e osiiess fmudel v ackioved bath by callecting contac il cach s isd valliig i firaneial azenss, iy

+ Tpe asset’s contraziuzl cith fowd ceprment 3P4

Dbt larstrumznnis Inzlizod silhin ihe FYTOC Category ote maxrurod miially 30 weli 32 ot 2ach seporting dala ot fir ugloe F i value muuements are recognited 0 the ather campreheinive

inzame (O, Howowar, the Groun fauagnites intrem incame, imiparment ey B povoraals amil foreign =g pais o i in the penlit and logg On dérseagnitinn ol 1he g,
lative gain or tnsy o ! din 301 1 rrckavsilien from the equity t B4 Interest samed whilzh hebing FUTOZI debt inziroment is reparted a5 inlefest ineome wsg the £

el

Ught imtrumants.at FYTPL
EVTPL iy a resithual categoiy dat debUinctoiments. Any debe instroment, ik daos nat mest the tritena Tor categaffiwlian az at smarlaod ooskof as PYTOC] b elavitied ag ot TP

Inn axfdition, the Group may elect 1o tesignatz o debt indrament, which sllerslis mests Armartigor cond ar FYTOCI oriterta, a5 at FUTRL Bowaver, such shection i allzaed only * -
reducas ar 2limi A ent ar recog i [rrieried loge E mismalch’] Debt indtrumends neluded within the FUTPL <atrgary are messuied aBialr valie
wilh all thanges reenaniced in the PEL

Bizsirtess modil The busmors mada) reflacis sy the Group manazes e avels v arder 1o geneeate ot Muws. That by, wihers the et s abijrctiva in wately o collecy the contretyal girh
Naxtes roim the avaels, thie samia bs messired sl afior led cont o wheee e Griun's ohisetive (5 10 2ollg2t bath s eontractial cosh Nows and caish oy arting from ihe sale ni g1sts the
=amy i meaiurad at {alr valie through oller comprshensivs incame (FVICLT I neitbes of thave n applicable (2 g finmeil sisets are held fnr trading purnodes) then the linancla 15ets aic
clzstilind s part 0! ‘Glher business medel and metired 3t VTR

SPR): Wihzre the baviness model 1= 10 hald assets 1o celiect conttactual cash Uaws (18 iAeassiied S0 amartizod zast), the Group dizesien whether the financial Instrigncety’ _sch lows
sagrovent snlely payments af peinsipnl and mtcrek (the 000 test'] In rmaking Ns ssseisinml, the Chmugy erntilen s whettier the contrachual couh linws 3ie consistent with 2 bage leiiding
ATTAREEMENT ke (ntsiet includdes only cantiduratinn fir the fims walue af moniy, £t ¢, alhar haur iending risks and A prafit margn that 13 cansistent sith 4 byl larming artangemant.
Vihare tha contraciual larms introduce sxposure fo risk o olatllity that ars inzonaistent with 3 bavic lending arrangemens, t5e related linani i@ asset fa claseifind ard mesiured a#imr vzl
Ihrasgh rufit of luid, The dmartized o, s meniioned sl compiteil wrlg the elbectivg interegd rate niisthid

Aftwe nitial meavaement, sich fnarcial assely s wbiequantly mestred 3t amortised cost uiing the offective intored rate {ERR) mizthud less tmpaiemant, Amorlised coit b =al uisted by
taking inta agcount any shagoiint of premim un aeqalzition and lees or <ot hat ot s inteprl part af Wha £ The EIR amirtlation is inchuded in bterest incame in e satimens ol grafit
ar boss The hrses ariting Iram impairment v recopnised o e stateme of pafit o fos :

I Dg'awmllw

Tiya Grobp Carecopilies 3 lnanzial avet when tha sontracrunl rights te the cash Hiws liom the avset capins, or when it tranateis e fancial avses and sulistantially a1l the risks s rewands
ol awmership of thie asit in another poity I the Group neliher tanabens Aue itaing subabantialip Al e risks snd sosand ol gnerzhis and eontlen e the trandsnred ysaet, l
Graup recegnives by rebalned intered i e atsel anid an sssaciated ity Gor amenrts it may have 0 gy i the Sinup relne yubsbantially ol thes sigks and rowards of awnehis of 2
tranylatten finangal asiet, the Graun fnmifues ta fecoymse e hnancal asset and alo recngtc 2 callatoral ed borrmwing for the prucseds feemved

On derecognition of a finantial aael in il entirely, the diTerence beiwsen the asset’s cartying amsunt and the sum af ke consideration facaived and recaivabile and the cumudataes an o
lsia thiat had beeh reoogniied in obker compdehiesie icome il acenmiulated o anuily i recognised in proliz of (e quch gals or o weld haye olliadss been seczenived |« pralit or

lorean dingazal o that iipancial asiet

On darecognitiog of 4 fnancial avel aihei than in it entiely (24 when the Gtz selaine in oation i repurchase part of & t=arifeired aveel), the Group alincates thi previas arryiing
amaiint af tha financial awet betwsen the par it (ntinues fo decennite under continuing imuplvement, and the 5311 na kangor recagives on the basis of tie relative air vabie of thoge
parts an ihe date of she trinsfes The differcnce between thy cxrrying ameunl allozated ta the [t that s na lamger tecognived and The sum uf tie cnsideeatlon mesieed for e wait fe
Tnnper rerogideed al any cusmulative gan ar (o allacaled e i That had been 1 dued il gthar comprahantye incoms & recagised in ptafitof I of wich gan or 1nes weaild havs
atharedie been (ergniod in profit or low an diroosal of thar finanelal 1ssoL A semiiatiea gain or inss That had been récogiited m ather camprekeny e income b olcited betueea (he parl
that canbinuas b ne recoznised and the gt that it nz bongor roengrised sn the hasis ol the eolative i values of o s,

Faquity Ineestmanis and Mutual funids
All pawity insestiments (n scope of Ind AS 109 tre meayieed at falr vaiue, Coully Instraments whieh aie hald far trading are tassiied as held 4l FYIL For all alber enuity IrstruF.ents, the
rizuftie ki civangm i the L valie The Gronp inakes such elezticn an an instrument-by. imiriment

Group fnay make a iresareh'n slactinn o present in othar comp
btz The thassiticalion is made an miligl recoani o and 14w revee bl

1 the Girmip deides to dawily an eguity madment 2y al PYTOCT then wlt e valie chaniges ai the s ., dre izad | the SCL Thary iz no recyelag of thie

amounts fioin U0 Lo siatement of profit 2nd loze, sven an ale ol iveitorent oweser, the Sranp may sransfer the cimiilalive galn af (213 within aniily
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BiE, Finawcial Labilitles

.

=

lisitlil facagaition and maasurament

wmanial dabillties ars claified and o e AT dnadUsed cosloar FVIVL A finainchil atilieg iz casnilied 5% ot FUTPL AT iy olaisified aa Bl for bading ar 8l designated s on initia)
rezegnbtin. All firmeial shilifies are secogsied 18 i0slly a8 i value anel, in e dage o eany and Dok owdiggs and payahier net of divectly attebutable ransaciion dens Difer Hinandal
Mstilities ate subssquently imwavured i wncrtived cond ing the oifizive interest methad, Interest osxponta are recugniied i Statominnl of arolit and lass &hy gain or ks o disa negniion
4 alaorecognisent 0 Statatrent af pratt and lots

The Lroup's Financial liabilities ielur = tmars. slebantirees and burnssings snclafing bank sverdrafts 2pd trasds & nibar payabies

Lgans, Debenture and barrowings
Altnr intial rrcogrtian, mt:rht-hna.p.; [rang and Horreanings are sulissgeenlly maaadrad ai aniocHised coit usinid Hee SR o etbiid, Gt ated fivam are weognised inprolil ar [nms atien tHe

Hahillitioy are derecognbied i well ac thrgugh the CR amartisation presems
Amorilied costis calouloted By taking 0 accodof dng o scoume or premiam o dequistion and feer ar costs that 16 dn intrgeal part of the EIA The EI0 smertuadion s inslidee an deanes

custs e e Staksmint of profit and lesc

Financlal h Hy d at cail
Finanelal hatilities 1hal sre pet hdd-nr trading and are nol desigrated o st PVTPL are measired at annezrlivand e at thi s of subiequynt accounting perizdi. Th earryirif mruantyal
finanzial liaklitins that are subyeoqusnlly deauied ab amaetiosd 2ot 3me daiermined bated on the silsctive interest fethod (nfersst eapeize that I rat cupitallsed 23 part oF nate s

2eeet (v ineluded i the 'Fianco ozt ine dlon

Thz eliceleg mierast method s 4 wiethod of calod s ing e Smoti el o of o Gnancial Habiilivy and ol allccating jnterack ssnense v the rebvant persd Thi elfeclive ntereyim ate b the
e That awactly disrnis simated Doise cadh nagmients finclitfing all leee and paints paid of socewed il foem an indegisl part of the eifective mierest rate, tranaction woritz amd nther
premium or did ol thinugh the capected e of ihe Bnansiil lahility, ar fwhers aporaptiate) a thortor i, b e el arryitg arnaand om (rilal ferogaitien

Flnantlal gurenien caniracls )
A Hinanclal guarsibes cortragt (s & cuntract thad poruires e Nseer to ke spenilivd payrients 1o relekiurse the lildes far 3 g i inewis hezmge 3 speciticd debtut faly fo moake payiiont

ey ddie ) 30 oot i o Witk the larmead 3 daht instriment

Flnapaial graranter cantracts ssued by the Sreapare iniially measueed 3t el (o valvee and, o rot ¢ 2 § 31 ol FUTRE, g sub I =l at the ligher ol

the airount of o allmvance determined in accerdatee with Fnpa rment regireniests ol ml 4% 100 and
¢ T amtabnl inilially recognised ket whsi afifsjiate, tha cumulative 2movnt of iseame seragrited

il gallian af financial

Tha Graup derecernieet financal Bablilies whea. and anly whien, ths Grinp's abligations ire dizchargad, eancelled af e eapinmd, An cxchange belwarn with & lendef of R ——
waith substantially dilferant teris bs acenuitud fof ey an wnlimguichmein ol the selginal lnincial Hasilty and ihe recsgitian of a new | nandal |anility, Similarky, 2 whstantial racellication &
tha tarms af an esliting Branzlal labdiy (dether or ool sitributabile 1 e Gnancil dificiity of e debizor] i ffur 35 an extinguishment of the criginal lnanghdl liab 3 300 the

recognitian uf 4 few lnsneial abllity The ddferencs Letween the carmane amaunt af fhe financial linbility deresoaniced wd fhe consideration paid and payale (s raeegnited b prefit ot less.

Raclacsiicartan of Nnanelal s1inty and tshilliler
The Group dasin’t foclawify iz financial assets sub ta theit initinl 4o, apait fram the caceptional sdrcumstances m which the Groop acequines, dispoies of, or fe sninaies a

burtlneia lng Finarcial Haklites sre necef fecladified

Falrualie mesiurement .
Fair vaue b e ptize that wauld be received L0 5ol a0 2sset or pald to tramles 4 bty In an onlery Uansaction belwesn market pariclnants at the mesvarament d3te The faie vdup

me ment i hased i e presamption that s frangasion t el 162 2550t or tansdes the lahility takes place &ithes:

tn the principal mariot for e 2sset or kability, o
In the aliente of 2 principal market, e it advantgeous mirkel Tof i oiet o abality The princpal v The most 2 Markel MU oe Lua by tha Geoun

The Falr value of ait Jisst & a falility i ineing the oz thetrarket woulll use when priong the avel or liskility, ascuming (hat markst Rarbizijnis ag i iheir
il bt mirmi

A L3 saluw maayuremet of 3 non-finsedl asiel taker nts seeoum 3 market pIMCEant’s Ability 1o generats sconamic Horeits by Usisg the 2ot in 4 highestand bast use or by ssiling it
I another market gaiticipant that would uye The agsel indsFighest and et uae

Thet Gratip wrs waliition Lechniquies that are apprgitlale i tha cleeimilanzes ard far wnicn sullicient doia are avaianle to measure fir value, mavmisng the cae of reimvant ahgeable
inpiits and minimising ihe s of unalbsefvitle mputd

Al vinety anid banilities For which Bl value (5 me dar diicioacd inihe linandial <t ii ais e
Imwirt thiat bs sianlficant to (ke Taie valwl measuremeni s a whole:

nin the Tair value ierarchy, describad s fnllows, Based i the oo et level

Level § == Quoted {unadjiited) market prices iy azthve maikets fer ilentie o aigont or liagilties,

Leve! 2 —Valualion teehnigues lor which th fodent level Input i1 13 signilizant 13 tre [air vabios messuremant 5 directly of bnfire by b oriabls

tavel 3 — valuation techifaes Tar whish (Hz lawml Iesnl input thal iz signlficant To the fais ealie moscem (s orobiger vkl

Fai szamtz and llabili m that are recogrised i the Fnaneiad statament on 4 reconing basls, e Gioug idereimines whather branefnrs nave aoourred betwesn lsvels 14 the hirrarchy yree
azuring categansation [Bassd o the et leve ingut that i significant (o the far salie measuremant ai 2 whale] o the end ot each repoeting year,
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I tpdireient of tnancial spsets

I, Guervins of iha impalement gringipls (EELT
I agenrdanes with Ind A% 109, T GITUD (5 feguiel 1o mmtrires asprcted oot 1055 an s Tnancld inctramirnis desiiat=th al dmortized cast and i valie thiodgh siimr o et
finme Arcordingly, the GToop i reauined o doterming Dfetim e loairs on el ot ramenss whiens godit gk s meoaeg signlicanily since ds ertgmnation Far ather resinamans, he
fhemap s requieed (o ircognlie seahl bmves nuer neer 12 month paiied. (ke Group s an senen te dele e such lasess on indivdual bt or calipetively deperd ng ugrom the naluie ol
undertying peitfalio The Groip has 3 PPocess Tu disess £ el nnk of 20 evparures at =ach yrar ong an folipey

Sage
These "epresent capotisfes Srhie e thare har ot Basn 3 signilie sl e o s in crodi o Sinice il 1=Cughilion or hal has low oedit ThE al i repoeting ilale. e Groug has svsgqed et
all atmvelate espavire: | & Eanosar=s with ro ovirdine ) and eepnvure gt 33ty wverdize Tl ander this calegary i setordines with bl A5 107, 1he fitatl menures ETL en ah agsaty

duwe nexi 12 mopthe

Stage |
Firsapchil dridteerenerds oab bawn s o Ugoificad mo cate e ool rink e w il rocagnitian die dliified under ihis stage. Baisd on emairical evidence, sgnlllcant incfease (i cadi rhkoiy

i after the OF i e ercaed Tor o parlad maes than 30 dayr Aceo-dingly, the Groun classilics all wapmate s with averlies waceeding 1 days o) sach i i dnle
urdler this Shie Thie Gidun mnasores [felime TCLan stage 1 i

S fil
All gupagurey naving averdue babancms for 3 period sxcesding 90 iyt ae donsilered In e delaglts 2nd ae elazilived uner ills stage. Aceardingly, the Group measures ifotime laises of

suzh exgmure IMtiro revenie an such Lontiacts i esleulated by apphing the elfective mleresd rate T the amartized codf (ot of snpament allawance] stz of the gress earrying
amaiint, Thie mthind b smilar o Stage B avdis, with the probaniity of default set ap 100% .

Whatts ealibling FUL eon g enlloelive e fer o group of winlar seents, the Group apphies 1he samae afintiglas faf 3zeing whether there has beon & sipniicunt incienss is cradi fla ince
inntlal fetanmition

i1, The calculation of ECLs
Fiv mgchanics of tie EOL z310ulanion miulve the wte of follnbmg ey slamenns:
Fenbability of default {i10] - tnn pranabetity of detault i ot eatimate nf the ikekinood of debault over g gl bme hengon 12wt ut libetione, deperding onon the stoge of thessset) b
eutimation s dong-based om Rlstod el interhial diba svalabdic with (e Griup
Fanasiire at delali (EAD) - it feptwsents an catimate of the ssposirs of the firous ol 2 fiture date alter congidering fenaymante by th couiterparty bielaie the defanult event =y The
outttandig balance a1 af reporting date v considered 55 TAS by the Sreun Conuidpring the B labersined abave licloes m amoing at delaglt, there nn Loparate requirEme nb ks estimats

Fan
Lo given e bl (LGD) — 11 represents an eithvite of the lov aspecter o b s incorred whan the sseet ol defan | ociin Te Gt dses st liss i deasmal Ay LS00 e

deeanbefi e il Tor iee gt g of caledfaing (G0

|l Dafintion of Dafault and s .
Thet Group cenpdere 3 0 cnedl rstiuncent ai dotavtingd and classiles & o5 SLage W lckedidimprairid ) for LCL celéulation iypleally shen (b barrower begnines 80 duys peat die un

wombradtinl fivironts The Oraupi may als Ty b Stage Wl it In shnilaml deiorsrion i He linene) [ ol the b o A thab aelyonic frorke)
« may have o diipeo Iy ab bt on e Dean sepaymient Thus, as 3 part of the qualitalive aszescment ot whether s iniiment o n Anlaull, e &raup slen
eotidets 4 vaticly of imtancey that may indicate delay inor aan fepipmant cf e boan When such events aceut, tie Srnm carafilly con sz whelhnr the cusnt should tesll = treating
hae b an defyulted ard therelore assessed & e 1 o FCL caliubatany ar ahicd g Stage b sppropriste

Classification nf sccouinis irin Sage (| s done wisa thers is 0 aimiiEant izrese inerodid rgk dnce wibal recojthitian, typically wnen contraciual fegerments are mare than 30 iyl i
It 1s fhe Gmup’s nolicy to conzider o finanelil inatrument as ‘corad’ and therelire 12 Qassilind ot of Sage il or Stags || wien none of The dalaltctarks whic rellled i hunir gl

Afe presnt

iv. Parwiard iaoking infcrmation
While tatimiating the eeprrted credit logses, the Graup revieswds inacta:o:anomic develapmenis ocoimong i1 (e etonnmny and markst it nparates if On o perladi= bish, the Graug Hehaes i
thaie o any rol haty ke trefuti live G07, Unamploemont rales, Genbimatk rates st by the Amsprve Bank of lb, inflatian ele with thy eitimate PO, Leip
cetarmined by the Groos based on i inbernal data Whle e mterml sviimates of 80, LA fatm by tha Granp may not be ilveys sellodive of such rolationnies, 1emaeriey owstays are
embedded {in e iethodelogy Ta raflnet such macea- scanomic (rends reaionably

v, Wilte ol
Fimanzial aveate ara wriiten off cilhar patidly b7 in thei- anticoly anjy whidn the Graus bas ho feaanable sxgectalion of recouery. (1 the amaint 1o Bo writen ol ks greate than ine
aceumiibatedl loss allweancs, tn diffarenca recarded 53 a0 ehparse in the Betiod of weita afl Any sibesquient fecovgi ey are credited L It i fis el Bt an stz ement of
atafit and Ina

wi.Collaarsl repassesied
The Group's pobiey bs 16 e/l tepriiessed assnts. Nom financil 3370ts ronosses sed aie Waniterrad 2o gzt hield for take o0 Tair valus less esit ta walt er pringinal outshanding wiikhne is leis at
repaiirssion dals

Share based peyments
Equiry-ssmiled thata bived paymenis to emiloyecyand others provid g anmila® seiires aie measured a7 the o viltie of the equity instruments at the grant date

The fair valte determined af the grant date of the squity seifed share hined pyments i wepenied o 3 shraight Wt batis ever the vesling year, based on the Grabp's colimali=ol equily
réw fhat il g ¥ weif, with 2 inareata i aqity, At e Sl of cacdoenutng pear, the Greap reises 18 sdimate of the mumboer af erully ments s s ted 1o
wEgh, The impact of Dhe pew'sion of the origingl #stimalos, o any, s recoprdied In Slatement of Pralil and Lass sugh that the cumiilative expanies tefiocly the revised sslimate, with g corr sponding

adljustriend 1n the Shara Baced Baymonis Raseies

The dilstive atfect o aulitancing eptians it rellcetod ot additional thare diution in the computaticn & diluted rarmings per share

Seament enporting
Orcerating ieg ate wel iri A manner Witk the inlermal foped Uit proside I e shiol operaing decison makas THe EaEma Ty primary bukingss seginens afe iellec #d haved

ai the principal butinets carned oot L8, iendng Uit Hun-ltanking Flianca Sompany ARk} iegubafed by (he Bocareg @ans of india URIVL. The fish and ratum of B Husess of the
Campany iz hot i with peogranhizal hence thars |3 ng wcondarysegment
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rl imterest in Subsidiailes and sisesiate entitics
Trenstment in subtidlalies ind adasciale entities dra cartied of cost des decarmiilated imzaamant 9sses, it any. Whre an indhe stin of siDainent wants, e can gimg amaunt of the imstment Iy

asseszed and wabteh dote yelur immed stely 13 it recuveiable amoint n Sinoal af meesiment in sibaidiarie ar the Iose ot sgnificant influence over fontly controled entities, the Wifeyznes
Trebwsmm fiel dagiousl praceeds amd e Carmpng Imourls A fecogriond in1he glatemeni of pront e o

5| Bonawing Cait

Borrowing Casts cutishits of tktenest anil diher coste that an enbiy incurs i comnesbion with the boirowngs of finde Boronsiee racs sl nlidies st A e dilie s 16 e oelen] g
: ! " : regrariad ag

an adjustmant to the borrawing cavts
larraaslisg casts dhecly atrbutabile iz the acquitilion or oo al & gudliring g are caplialized as @ patk of dw covl ol sl asses INGT e aniby trses o sibstanttal peslod 5 Hme 10

campate and prapare the el for dsantended wie o sale. The Company cantiders a serked of twalvs months o mare 13 2ubsiiial perlad of tme

fransaction costs in reipect ol ‘ang barm borrawing are amiitiied ousr the tente of seipective Inams i Efteties Intersat ata P01 method. Al sihar beormauang casts are reeognemd i tic
Stitesment af Prabit gnd Logs i ihe perind inowh o they aie meutred

Retent pranguncements

Iefintstey &f Corpoeata Aflars ["LACAT) nolilies new standard or amandments (o th eciting standaids inde: o {indlan & i Srandarciad ede s 25 el froi time o Hme. 0 33 taurch,
232, MACA amenided the Comparies {lnahan Accounding $aniardy) Smerdinent Rules, 7022, applicable frem LA, 2022, ar balgw

ind AS 103 = Ral 1a Concap .
The amendmems speeiliy thal 1o nualify dar recagnition a1 part ol apglyng the Sgiuiililen mithod, the idaniifialile dszats aequirad and liabilibies a22umed must moat the dobintions af wents anid

Nabihities in the Canecptual | rmewark inr Financal Zepaiting usber fdian A=cnusling Sandard (Conceptual Trarewnek} ivvwed by the Insiitute of Chartered Arconnlanis of Jndia ot The scrpulaiion
date These changes da ot uzeiflicantly change the fewiiements af nd A% 101 Tha Groug daes il Sepet the o0t b Jave any gl izl in i linancl Satements

Ind A§ L6 - Prococds before Intended ute
The amendmants malniy prohibit an entity Teaim deducing Iram e cost of property. plant and equishiont amaints weoved froe selling Hiewis promhiced uchile Ine company i praparing W asiet far

Its frtenddd use. nstemd, an oiitlly will recagnin suchsales precscde and velaied §ooin ek o fui The Troup does not evpect th smendrants in have 2 mpact il vmengrition of il pregorty,
mente

lant ang squlainent in s linancial o
ind A5 37 - Onerous Coniracs - Casts af Fellilling 3 Cantract

The amandmianti 2occily that that the ‘cost of WITIng'  contract cammpizes dhe ety st elae divee iy 1o tle tonlract’ i that relale direerly 10 3 cantéact con cifher B [acremantd ranE of
Fulfilllryg that eortrnct {expmples would be direct labowr, materish] or an aliacallon nf aiher costn that relste dirselly *n fulfiling contraces The atvendment = piseniially a clarilizatien and he Grous
huns nat cepect the ameri (o e gy diz ant irrigact in itz dinancial staterents

Ind A% 109 = Annual iImpravements fo Inid 45 {7021]
Toe amenifinent cardles which fers an entity neludes when i apnlies the *L3 pierienl’ teal of md A% 107 in asresshig whicthe! to darecnjinlve 3 financial lulilily The Grnep dans not mpoct the

! T have any vigralizant impact in s finangish slatenants

1id AS 106 = Anpidal impiovamants [o Ind A5 {2021)
Th amandmaniy remove the thistration of the reiiiburismont of fnashnd improvemonts by e leise? in ordir bo sgeale Sy 1l eefusiun fegarding the treatment of lesie inceidives that

mighit arise because al hiw lcaie Incntices wera described in fhat ilastration This Groub dues nat aspoct this 3 mendment o i oy deniigant mnpact in 15 fnanal statsmenns.
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Notes to the consalldatad (inancial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
[All Amount in Rs. In milllons, urless atherwise statad)

4 €ash and gagh equivalents

AsotMarch 31,2022 As of March 31, 2021

Cazh on hand 0.10 0.08
Balanze with banks
- bafanca in cash eredit and overdraft accaunts 1,355.79 369,40
= balancs in uffent accounts ’ 4,470.25 1,18:4,03
+ deposits with original maturity of less thar 3 months Loco.on

829.64 2;233.81

* includes balange in ICIC! Bank Excrow account is maimtained a3 per guidelines of Racervs Rank of India far cparating
Serni clozed Prepaid Payrmant Instrumant applicabls on ane af the subsidiary acquired during the y=ar and can be used
anly for the specified purposes.

Bank halance other than cash and cash snuivalents

o

Deposit with orig nal matuney al mars than 3 months® 394 A%

TIY

* Depasits baing len markad against corporate cradit cards, ouardealt secaunts

Tradn recelvables

o

Umiecured cansider=d good 51.113 62,11
61.03 61.11

Less: Irmpsiirment [oss sllzwancs

Total ‘1@ m

Trode recelvables irom related partias {z=¢ nole 41)
Trada recelvables Ageing Schedule

Ag at 31 Morch 2022

than &
Particulars IEI:‘I‘unl:I! G months-1year 17 yoars 2-3years Mgre than 3 year Toml

Undizputed Trade Recivabilss = considersd good 57.17 = = 4 386 iioa
Undisputed frade Receivables — which have significant increase in

cradit Hak = - 3 -
Undisputed Trade recejvabls — credit impaired ; % i _
Dizzouted Trade receivables = cznsidered good a 2 . . .
Drzputed Trads feesivables - which have significant inereage in crudil < 5 S .

Gisputed Trage regulvablies— cradit impaired . a . . .

57.17 s - = 146 =1.03

As At 31 March 2021

' less than &
Particulars .;:m:h“'; Gmonths: 1 year  1-2years 23 years Mare than 3 year Toml|

Uridigputed Trade Recervables - cansidarad poed B1.11 - ' . F w311
Undizputad Trade Recelvables - which have significant inerease in .
credit risk
Wrdisputed Trage receivable —credit impaine:d Py . . N )
Dispited Trade receivobles — consldered good £ F I Ly 3
Dlsputed Trade receivables — which hava sigrifizant increase in cradit
risk

éii:rmtcd Trade reecivablies - eredit impaired o . 5 E .

62.11 = . s - 2.11

Mote: The againg of trade receivanles has been setsrmined from the tranzaction date




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial stat for the yoar ended March 31, 2022
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

7 Loans
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Amartised cost Falr valuge Total Amortised cost Fale value Tatal
thraugh ather 'through ather
comprehensive comprehensive
Incama Income
{A] Term Inans
Corparate loans* 15,680.69 367.90 16,048.60 1372371 147.83 13,836,54
Cansumer lpans 33,856.86 . 33,856.86 19,253.66 - 19,233.66
Total (A) Gross 439,537.55 367.90 49,905.46 32,977.37 141.53 33,120.20
Less: Impairment loss allowange 3,092.83 11.48 3,104.31 3,017.87 4.60 2,082.47
Total (&) Net d6,444.73 356.42 46,801,15 30,959.50 138.23 31,007.73

i
v

v

)

* Cerporate loan portfolio includes laan eutstanding fram employees of Rs. 1.72 millians (previous year: Rs. 12.14 millians)

()

Secured by rangible assets and intangible assets 15,680.69 36740 16,048.60 11,723.71 142.83 13,836.54
Unsecured 33,856.86 . 33,B56.86 19,253.66 . 19,223.G6
Tatal [B) Gross 49,537.55 367.90 49,905.46 33,977.37 142.83 33.1%0.20
Less: Impalrmagnit loss allowanee 3,092.83 11.48 3104.41 2,017.87 4.60 20247
Tatal {B) Net 46,444.73 356.42 46,801.15 30,959.50 138,23 31,097.73
(€] Sector

Public sectar - . : - _
Others 48,537.55 367.90 49,905.46 32,977.37 142,83 33,1:020
Tatal (¢} Grass 48,537.55 367.90 49,805,45 32,077.37 142,83 33,120.20
Lass: Impairment loss allowance 3,092 83 11.48 3,104.31 20172.37 460 2,0:2.47
Tatal [C) Net 46,444.71 356.42 46,801.15 30,959.50 138.23 31,0%7.73
(@)

In india 49,537.55 67,90 49,905.46 32,877.37 142.83 33,1.0.20
Qutslde india . 7 . . - -
Total (D) Gross 449,537.55 367.90 49,905.46 32,977.37 142.83 33,120.20
Less: impairment loss allowance 3,002.83 11,98 3,104.31 2,017.87 4.60 2,0.2.47
Total {D] Net 46,444.73 356.42 46,801.15 30,958.50 138.23 31,0%7.73
Nates:

Lagns and receivables are non-devivative financial assets which generate a fixed or var able interest income for the Holding Company, Tha cartying valug may be alfwectad
by changas in the credit risk of the counterparties.

Sncured Loans granted by the Holding Company are secured by equitable mortgage/repistersd mongoge of the property and/ar undetlaking Lo create a security adfor
persanal guarantees and/or hypothecation of assets and/ar recalvablos and/or pladgs of shares/debenture units and other securitios,

The Halding Company has granted certain loans o emplayees amaunting to &s. Nl in current year [previous year; Rs, 1214 millions),
Corparate foan portfolio includes non-corvertible debentures of f5. 3,774, 76 millions (previaus year: Rs. 2,385.18 millians).

Disclosure in respeet ta lgan given to Key management persannel (KMB]
Amount of loan ar advance inthe  Percantage to the total loans and

nature of loan outstanding advances in the natura of loans
Type of Borrower As at As at As at As Bt
02 b 31,2023 M :

Key management personnel (KMP) - 0.48 MNA a,00%




Marei ta the r

BN Finande Prrsate Limited

d financial st

for the year ended March 11, 1022

(Al Amaunt In R, ia millions, unless otherwlie wiated)

21 Amgakment ollowants for loans and advanres ba borrowers

Summacy wf laans iy stage irkotion i o o/l

Cantumer lnane Marcih 11, 1021 arth 31,3021
- agel Staged | Siage3 Tuitsl Slage ] Siaga 2 Stage 1 Toral
Griy fareying smaarl 1285501 M1t AR | uamiamg | 1180983 334173 15,25 4 ar
LT Impanrneil lgsd allcwance ZB4 00 JH.'JG. A 8% L ET I_J_.u 11154 2040
[Mat enrrying amauni 1357174 837 33,3195 1783740 _Liz3.1n 18 daw 5
ot Wiarch 31, 3083 RSN 1. .| 11
Mage 1 1 Saged Tatal Anage i Stage ) Slaged Tatai
fii gz Earrving amauni = 15,000 17 19205 33483 16.049.60 | 10794 50 3 1,071 5% 13068 A
Lecss impasimant liay allmwanze 1j655 56 5 7 (41 257190 581 04 51743 GLE AL
et carrying amount e 1333536 167 67 A | 13sae00|  iLaiagd F a1 i2icAm
2 v &l ercdit wub ard i ¥ cuhiadlilile dot: e SluirTluian by o Dullmens.
sty ik i : Ceoat areh A1 J022 — " iiardh iy, 3003
= y Stagw 1 Sraged Stafe Tatal S1aga il - Stuge 3 Tatai
Gross Laituing Ameunt 4,06k 97 . 515 [NIEEH T8 Al 2ET 64 [T
Lecu: Impairaient lags alliwance LISk 119,85 1511 I! 142 26 57 F50.H 7
ML CarTying smouni 2a73.84 3 32.11 1.305.77 1.ak3.40 1707 1. jETENT
An anabyeis of ehanges in the 21055 £ aving smaunl in celatinn ta sanuamen and torpurate lending [ascvpt cragit substinites amd compiulyary canyariibfe detentuf i) i, as faligas:
e ORI e ]
[l:aruurn e loans Mo SraagaL
At Stagc ¥ Shage T Taal Magnd | Sumje 3
17.909.93 134533 - 13,393.00 20,850.54 L1985 15078 1,041,323
] F st
Hew Pdacti onginated, Maifed off R iepaymenls and laand 516 63 (57449} 1296 4603 20 (444 4] fana 70 |23.47) \L.387 61
lioasar s
Tranedars irarm Shige 1 1335 11 193 76 A143 i 7H ] i3 01
Transbars frum Atape 1 165 [ [T T 143 08 :
| : o 03 i :
32.855.94 81147 | G345 | 3naSsa | trenag3 | Laa7 . 1035308
Mmeh 11, 2012 Wareh 11, Fadl
Stagal Stage 1 Sagad Tatal Sage 1 Staged Tatal
o A g bafanee 11,701.80 . 101186 | 13.86a54| toeaSS | Lzimar 108300 | izis2.0) |
Hluw Arsots orfg) Astiad ‘ofl or nayments Wil fsa| g 0p oy o) nmzes|  1isas wm|  nanesz
datnes grued dur 221 L
Trapatere feain Stage | 1192 951 152 55 - =
Yeinalets from Slage 3 - - - 13117 [EITRE] -
Trapaders fros Sage 1 z st = - e ~
Titersd earPeling amount closing halance 15.080.62 TN 77463 1600060 | 1279490 |” iBnAE| 1aseesa
An aralide nf changes n the gross carrwng amaiet of ivesiments in relatian ta Cradi % and Comatdisry C Lkl 5 i, a3 TllEwi
[ Hatch 11, 2023 March 11, 1071
! Stage 1 iMagn 2 Siaged Tetal Stzgm 1 Siage 3 Suige 3 Total
Greray earrying amount opening batanie 120587 IR0,&4 35143 2169030 210767 . 1300 15I0GT
tlewi Asscls armnated, HMetiad ofl lor repsyreems and laam 3 KRR L J5R64 ; 12.48 WEE
datwongnnad dunne the vear
Travalers lram Slage E x - = FILTT) T YA P
Transfura frem Stagre Jeoed | e . B - =
ramfary fram Shage - . . - . - - .
fGirois ealfying amount chaiing halance AUEESF 151,89 451085 2,305.87 180,51 35193 3000




ORI Flnance Brivate Linidted
Notes to the canselidated financial stataments for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All Amaunt in Rs. in millions, unless othorwive stated)

s anaryus al ehanges o s ZEL slersrancez in ielaninn (o 2esufer dnd corparaie Teniling {erzent Credil Subsii afil Compubinrg Cnoy e tble O 1%, o Dipllae
Cohtumer lammy ; - Tanreh 31, 022 T ath 11 il =
Staga tege | 4taged faial Slage 1 Toral
A7 92154 . and ] _?‘DW fanm
Change in FCL uc bz dliange i FCLnidel eatis e [ 47 oo 5160 110.55 = BLE
Hiw Adsets aviginated, Neited off lor fepayments and Tdane = Py ; v}
e ko g i g 15 H kg 130 147088 LR 175441 1511 oa L3
Trangers fram Sfage L R3 01 EEEE] FTRE] % [EET]| 61 75 " 1591%
Feansfers fram 5tane 1 (L 115.209] - 15 06 z 0.20 [FE ] f1d.5))
Tranlees foom Slage 3 - i nog [N = a.0
Writa TFs 3 ? WAtTes| [iauy = . (i al| {1,014 ]
[Graus carrying amaunt cieiing hatance M 376.0m 6345 EE]] R2.47 17154 =] Andim
ll:ofpanr-lum = = Mu;rh_! L ';" y FAnith 1T
Slage apE tags 3 atal Stage 1 Hag=2 fiagm Taral
ni ojpenlng balones SALsa - a37.43 LElE 46 15219 6 4 3134 139,77
[Change inECL dus 1o shange n RELmadel mir 51133 R[ED) 51437 355 60 mE 1y ETET]
Peow Awepte originated, Notlied off lar sepayments aind oam R o |
i 155,38 26.81] wanT 20701 {111 apas
Franfers Sk [FEWL] % 38 - =
Tra fram Staie § : 26,24 121l 24}
Wrile Ol 2 . 3 2
ross carrying amount eloving balanes 1,055 56 2539 1105 252190 DEL.04 . 817.23 L1846
|
Ananakyiis of chisged i the €01 altowancazil livestingnl in relation Lo radic Subictintes st £ amptihary Cammroible Ddbantuias fraternote 8 1, =5 foliow:
Wi 31,3023 aren 31, 2021
Partleulars o i
Staged Stage 1 Stage 3 Taial Stage 1 Staged Atage 1 Tatai
. 3.0k 157 0.4 49513 13.00 =
53115 6150 E00.TL JBnus
I
v 10 oy 3735 z FITE a0 T L1 G2 47.0e
s - 1753| FEY] a
157 2571 - . : i
[Werlic ifs : : : = : -
EC) allawanre tlosing halasce pRLERE] T 31985 1,513.10 I8 157 i) 535,17

Callataral

17 gase of corpefate tetm hram the Group vn Bie tscess of extendng secirad Fam mamly backed by martgige o broparty frrcdsntial or comnisriil]

{m adition 13 (e aliwa metianed sallataral, the Graus haldd other tyes of calltaral and srodl annancements, siich s trasi-collateralisation o0 othes s1sots af the horravier, 1lire pledgs
guarantacs ol parent/l ahdingaraup campanias, parsnal glaraniees o romate:/gariners/propnietors. hynalbecdtion of receiables via sicenw aceaunt and oime

1 its norimal eoufis ab Business. the Groun does nab phytleally reposssss propsrtios or oiker 25cets, bl tneovery effaris ars made on delinguent |ssns thysigh callecian ssectives, alon
wilh lagsl moam {0 racavir dive ‘aan repaymants

nze contractust faan (apy,ments a2 mare than 92 dayz mast diss, sepsssetsion ol sfonery moy bo inlbiated undsr the brovisions of the SARFAEM Arl 2003, Rowpusse ssed gingrty |
dizgased ol In e manier presetived i The SANTALS atl ta recawer cuttanding deli




Investmenty

Ax 4l March 31, Jod3

1A}
Eauity invitmants
Investinents In Asinclains

Erdily thares in N2E Altermativen Provate Lmiis )

Subratsl
Othere

Mokes te the

Edjunty 2haras in A Cangsim ef Crothi M vate Dimesd

Tnufyshates v Fash Sleetoaniez Privare Umited
Exuity shares i Alchemiisl dsiz1 frconilniction Clinpasy Hmited

Campulniy convadi il ofelorence characin alchembl davat

Ancanzpriidtiog Cambany Umiled

Subtnorgl
Mutual fundy

IMOELI 3arod s ANP Pardas Ligud Fuad - Dirgst Growth
440933 27 HOFC Liawdd Fupd © Direct Plan - Grswil Sistios
056349 HIFE Mznuy M arkel Turl « Angu'ar Plan Growih

450,747 90 5 L] Fund Dieeel drawth

206.158,58 UT) Linuid Caeh Plan - Difeci Flan - Beawth

1,079,040 KR ICICT Unu'd Fusd - DI Growath
T13,754 65 Awit Ligisle fund - Direct Grawth

Subiaiel
Compiluary ar iy e

T #00 Campulaony converilkls dehentures in Hnh Electoanic s e
Prisaie United ol Tare walow Te §00.000 daeh

1777 Comaahary conveibie debantu res in Aved Engincaning nls
Fiivara Limiind of facs valus of Ra. 100,830 eeth

4,100 Optionally ranver tible debeniures in Atad Eninna-ing india
Procate Limiled af face valie f Ry, 1.00.00 sach

Sublotal
cradit Substiutes

412 uriti of Panchehagl Tgldtech Pvate Lmited af facs valye s

1,000,000 hvily paid vo

B0 umils ol Radiant Palymes Phvite Limitsd of fce value By

1000000 Mully Faid ap

G239 units af Rahizja leen Enlcflainmant Privats Linited of fice valin

T 00000, 5408 Fually it d e

B units nf Saha Evlare Navelager Brioate limitad of face eal s B

FC00, 00 illy gabd g
Sublatal
Shef hidbiimenia

Jwcurity recsiuns v Alchgmin 3V Tous
Miths ol ChM AIF Special Dppariunities Stheme

Subtatal

rotal {A) Srave
4! imaasrnent Inz allawanse
Tial [&) et

18}

Inyevimenty auislis lnlis
Wnvezimenta in rdia

Tatal (0] Grass

Ledsl impairmend foas allawanie
Tatal (8] He

ERY Finance Private Limited

For the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al Amaunt In /5. b imlliinn, uniess stherwlse sated)

Amainigsi eagt At balr valus Al bale walug Subtotal Frulty method [
throngh prolitand  themugh ather
loiz comiprehenilic
Ineema

176 10 FTRLE

136 13530

i17 337 BN

73397 e FLEE S

Lo 157 1578

M50 14,50 Ja5a
LIZto NV A1

57 14 - L2 BT ] 74,14

L5143 135311 L1631

Fl B 205,82 ER S

1AEa7 156207 LSRRAT

- TIE.04 .08 12806

o M LLFR ) 59ran

- 501 79 501 501,73

- 5,005 6k 0,005 51 - 6,005 80

= IRELR] 1,1am 13 1i4m 13

- BiL43 L3143 aildy

LETRT] 134 44 434 44

- 1,085.07 1,140.11 214,00 = 1.310,00
&350 137 o130 4136
66 Do = 676 C0 [ E
17757 iTaa E B . 15109

LEFRIT] mn L13n - 1137
163072 = TR 200405 - FRITNTY
HELNAE] 11 10401
iy 10,19 1030
FLERE! 1010 loxrn ETTETN

1.670.72 1.265.68 27007 11,676,458 126 .30 1,002.75
1,348 3k ki 1,13 151308 1ifa 13
CTrR YT R .11 TATEED T3 WY
. .1 — | 7. T L3007 11,675,45 136,40 ALA02Ts
LR TR L7007 1A78.45 136 30 11.a0.75
114835 aLM 10143 1,513.38 : 1513m
EITED L FEITF] Jojeid) ik TN T R
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ORI Finanes Private Limited

Natei ta the t

i Tinanciat

|l Amount in Az, In miillens, unbeis atherwise stated)

to? the ynar ended March 34, 2022

Amortived sash a1 Labr value At lair valie Subinaial Equity mathed Tatal
through pralit and thratgh ather
Az at March 31, 2021 Tty cempruhanites
meume
1)
Eruiry Inftruments
Investments in Aizoclatos .
Gty ahateg b B Alternativm Private Limigel - - [FL 211 179.73
Sultotal - - [FLET [FEL]
dthere
Enuily sharar in 0 Consumics Creshin By ivate Dimiden in .37 217
Equity shares In McMally Blhaat Eng naecing Famnany Lmiied 7512 A IR e 542
Eauity ihare in Plath Plectronics Brivite Limmied - IH 40 304,40 30440
Teurity chares in Alchamist 2aiet feconsiocion Cumaany Linried 11010 31430 11630
Campuizary convaiiible grslifanre sharos in Alchemist Agset visn 3440 18.50
Aacansirugion Company Limited
subilatsl 1548 SR 5343 =
Putual fundy A2
L B Liautd Fand « Dideel Plan - Growith (RS - 745124 7.461,21
19,369 HOFL Money fMarkel Fand - Rogulai Man Growth 201 15 A5 FITR LY
LATLEIIn 500 Ligusd Fumd Dlieet Grawih 6,100 %% #0055 &, 10055
213, 203 ¢ Batoda Planesr Linwid Funo - Plis 8 Growls 505 34 50%, 24 50514
L EERIRT 0 ACICH Frisdentlal Lisuid Pund Direct Plan Growily J4 A3 Ja3.34
Siblotal . 14,578 91 - 17260 14,76
Dbt Inatruments Lt
300 ks of State Rank ol Wd 2 Sanies - I nan-conseninle daseniurs 53675 526.7% 51670
7.800 ¢ Ve e & w8 in Flath Sieziromies india . B2647 B26.47 a7t.a7
Trivate Umbied of face valus s 268,000 fulty nabl up
Surbroral . SR 2% B35 47 1,350 23 - LJ5Ley
Creadlt Sublifuras
472 umtx of Banehiaheal Biilbtes b Mieate Lol of (nce valis A P L m15g FIRe]
1,000,000 Lilly pail un
500 unite af Radlant Palymers Sivate Umitad of fars ualus By 5 17 96,12 TR
LA, TI0R figl1 pased i
B9 uritzof Mahiga loan Entertainimnnl Privats Limited of fage vafus 1o - 174 04 35100 3%x0a
fie 3,003,000 fl v naii Lo
0% units 0! Saha Estate Devrlopor Private brsten of face valie ta 566,44 FELT] CHEE] m1.aa
L.O0.000 fully eald un
A1 inits of Fartas e Duildwell Privste Umitid of (e s vilis B 157 amr 4574 an7a
L0000 fully oaid un =
Sultutal Lenal - 758 XGIE) : Loatin
THher Instiimants
Teesnily Feeaints [h Alchamids XV Trust 13414 . 144,11 a1l
Liriits gt DR AN 50¢00a] Doporiunitivs Sz hnme - i 11 = (SN
Subrotal o LAY 2 - 20533 = EGLSEN
Total {A] « tra 111825 14,596,15 130150 18,016.43 119.73 EERETEE]
Lot Impairmant lnss Slowanes - 193 88 59513 fah13
fenal {4} Hut 1493615 LIIET 1042131 L7 1355105
in}
Invaarmimits it indi - . ¥ . .
InusEsmanis ji indip 14,996 19008 15,0164 193 1%,548.47
Taral {] - Gracs LG 75 14,996,158 1,903.53 19,0643 11213 19,148.37
Less: Impzirmznt izae alfewarse AnkI8 - 192768 [y S b
Tatnl (@) - Hel 1,714,483 w_ 171087 — i 12373 18851 .0%
Hates:
Fist i wenient of Imipisloment bans alasan e iefer oot 1.1
Btall ol Groun's pssarfite i phesn bokow, Avociane it incladed i the Graun's linaneal skreiehis g eew iy mothad of aconunting:
Lama of naiity Prindlpal Activity Place af Prinelpal placeal  Papilealari A3 Azt
incgrmaratisn Lol Plach 81,3022 Merh 33,2020
o mailesy Pisgale [ Ineel it 1 Theliii Drwilu L ilt0r R Iy il Az A
A anabyis af Grosp’s mvestmonl in avsaciie iz a5 fal ows:
Anat By ar
Butinide at the Licgmming of e yoar 119.713 LERTY
Additianfdijiriment o ar
Disperal F
Share ol Pralitsf{lex) 1357} 151
Updend receryed -

Ralanie st the snd of thayaad

Timanlsl mfaorimation

135,30 13973
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Motes to the ¢

lidated financial stat

& for the year ended March 31, 2022

{All Amaunt in fs. In millians, unless otherwise stated)

9 Other financial assets (0t amortized cost)

Asat

As at

_ March31,2022  wgreh33.zezy

Securnity deposit 25.55 2117
First loss defaull guarantoe recovarahle 90.54 1,14.82
Ex-gratia interest benefit 99,47
interest accrved on fiwed deposits 1374 %
Manay with partners pending for disbursement A98.82 177156
Wribiliad ravanie and recoversbles 38136 $34.33
Total 1,610.08 2,837,35
10 Current tax assets
Advance Incoma-tax [net) 2396.13 23747
Tatal 296,13 == =32.47
e
11 Deferred tax assels

Defarred tay ability

Fairvalun of financial instruments 379,33 19,17
Differenca in incama racogrition on unrealized gain on mutval fund investmenty 23.80 Tim
Total deferred tax liabiliti=s 403,13 31,96
Daferred Lax asset

Provisian far employes benefits 10.96 14,47
Dilference inwritten down valus a3 per Companies Act and incame-tax Aot 12.18 6.54
EIf adjustment for prucessing fog 111 30.81
Liability against legsas 2.91 744
Impairment loss allowanee 1,131.17 =0.90
Carry forwarn of losses 3.23 s
Carry forward of interest disallowed u/fs 928 28.53 2557
Gross deferrad tax assel 1,283.37 =25.83
Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/ Asset 880.14 87

Kkt {Charged)/ credited (Charged)/eredited to P
|
Mavement of deferred tax assets March 31, 2021 to statemantof  other comprahonsive Mbith 31, 21
profit and loss income

Linbilifias
Fair value of financial instruments 19.18 143.02 211.13 933
Difference in income racognitign on unrealized gain an mutual Fund investmants 7274 {48 94} - 23.80
Defarred Tax Liabilitios 31,98 100.0 71118 IR
Assots

Provisicn for arnplayes benefits 14.48 f 62 (0,14} 20.95
Gilferance In written down value as per Companics Act and Income-1ax Act 6.54 5.54 - 1118
EIR adjustrment for processing fon jom 46.48 - 77.29
Liahility against leases 7.43 248 - 3.91
Impairment loss allowance 640.90 490,27 - 1,131.17
Carry farward of Lossas - i3 in
Carry furward of interast disallowed u/fs 0ap 15.67 2E5 - 30,53
Defarrad Taw Assets 725.83 557,58 {o,14] 178337
Nat Deferr assat 633.57 457,54 (211.27) B304




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year anded March 31, 2022
[All Amount in Bs. In millians, unless otherwise statad)

{Charged)/ credited  [Charged)/crnditod ta

Asat i As at

Movement of Daferred tax assets March 31, 2020 o statement of  other comprehensive March 31, 2621
profit and loss

Liabilities
Fair valur of financial nstrumuents 1183 420 1.06 19,18
Oilfetence in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fuid investments 10.25 53.53 72,98
Defurred Tax Liahilities aj.on 57.82 1.06 91.96
Asspts
Frovision far employes benefits 9.7 539 {0.61) 14.48
Differance in written down value a3 per Companies Act and Income-tax Act 580 0.55 - 654
FIR adjustment for protessing fee . 30.81 30,81
Liability against loases 386 347 7.43
impairment loss allowance 366.50 2740 sdl 90
Carry forward of interest disallowed u/s 940 15,67 " - 2567
Daofarred tax assets 411.82 314,62 (0.61) T25.88
net Deferrad thx assets 378.74 256,80 [1.67) a433.87




OfAl Flndnce Brivate Limited

Nates ta the consolldated lnanelal statemants for the yaar ended March 31, 2022
(All Ameunt In Rs. In milllons, unless othenwlee stated)

12 Froperty, plant and equlpment (ot cont or deemed cost)

Motes:

Gross carrying amaint
Balanee a3 at March 31, 2020
Additiona

Dispasals

Bulance as at March 31, 2031
Agditisn:

Dispasals

Balance 35 at March 1, 2022

Aceumulafed depreciation
Balance as at Marzh 31, 2020
Charge for the year

Dlipoly

Balance a1 a1 March 31, 2021
Charge for the year

Dhpoaly

Balanee 8s 8t March 31, 2022

Mer eatrying amaunt
Az at March 31, 2021
Az at March 31, 2023

1) Luasehela i

Furniture and [« i Ofiieq wquip Leass hold Tatat
fixturns —Imarovements

L.48 19.39 5.38 1208 141,24 00,43
nat A5 .47 - s4a
X 3781 538 FFET] 1di2d ETEER
) 18.84 0.13 uar 0.01 056
100y 5 - {031) {433 232k
1,50 57.55 555 32,69 137.28 235.07
0.5% 20.26 179 15.75 29.55 70.45
(131 1727 o 727 1643 LES 1]
03 mm a3y 20z 4638 10260
.26 1131 042 1.1 15.81 3190

_no3] f . (027 3.771 407
113 3034 1.69 2685 58.41 130.43
0n.9% 878 103 851 34.86 116.23
n.77 1831 0.06 5.84 78.85 10404

i3 compriszs

) Buring the current financial yuat and in the previous financlal year thara is nn rsuatuation of Freperty, plants and pquipment.

Inzuread for the constructiun an the properiy abtained on leats as disclowg in Note 45 - Righl to use azsets,

U1 There is no procesding initiated againit the group for he proartiss under the Benami Transactiens (Prohibition] Ack, 1908 and the rites mode thersunder.

Capital wark In progress

Capllal waik jn prograss

Af % 31 March, 2022

Projocts in prograss
Projects tempararlly susgandad

As at 31 March, 2021

Projecti in progress
Projacts temporarily sutpecid

As at

Avat

Mareh 31,3032 March 31,2031

3.7 =
~2iar =
Amaunt In CAIP for 3 perlad
Less than 1-2 yiary -3 yoars More than
Lyeat ESTITS
3 - - .
13,37 . - = =
Amaunt [n CWID far 3 perfod
Less than 1.2 years -Ayears Pbar= thin Taral
Lyear dyears

Contractual cammifments (o be executed en capitil secount amaunting to 5. 18 25 millisns {praviaus year: HIL|
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DM Finance Private Liited
Notes ta the consalldated Mnanclal stataments for the year anded Mareh 11, 2022
(Al Amaunt in Rs. In niilllans, unless otherwise stated)

Guroidedll
Partleulars o Az ar Az at
- Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cart or deermed cost 75353 .
Asgumulated impalement loss : :
= 153,53 5
Particulars A1t At
March 31,2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Cout or deared eatl = .
Ralance at the beginning of e yuar . *
Additlens &n sccount of acquisitions/busineis 2amhblnailons 15381 -
Ad|usiments . N
Foreign currensy traatlation reserve = %
Ralance at the end of the yoar ) 25353 -
Particulars Az at Al at
March 31,2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Baiange at the Beginning of tha year = &
Imeairmont losaes recognised in the year : -
Balance at the end of the year 3 -
Natas:
dwill rag % the cost of acquiition in vxcass of the Groug's intarest in the net fair value of identifisble nssats, liabilites and cantingent iian livas af
the acrjulren, When the net fair value of the identifiabte assels, labil wAs ingant iint ifad puzneds the cost of busineas scquisilion, the batgain
purchase sxcess s rezognized afar faapaering the fair value of net aisats sequirad in the capital reseren decdwill b messurod at seat bets accumulated ‘mpalsmant
lozzes.
For ihe purpase of imparmaonl testing, gooowill acguired in efe af the sunsifiery i comparad wilh the synargies arising feam the wobsdiary After testing, na
Impairmant 1a2; Y33 dssesiad
Right to uic assels
Might 1o use assets Tatal
Graif carfying amount
Balanes as at March 31, 2010 253,91 43,91
Addltions )
Disponaly —
Balanza a5 at March 31, 2021 293.91 233.01
Additions 7508 75.08
Disposals s »
Oalance as arMarch 31, 2022 = 368,99 368.99
Dupraciation
Balancg oy 4t March 31, 2020 4524 4524
Additions 79 3796
Disposals : £
falance as at March 31, 2021 B3.20 #3.30
Additians S0.R4 5004
Disporaks : i
Balance 3 at Morch 31, 2022 1404 134.04
et carrying amaurnt
As at March 31, 1020 248,67 248.67
As at March 31, 2021 210,71 2071
As at Mareh 31, 2022 134.8% 23495

Mote: Fer sthor detajls plaass r2fer Mote 47




15 Other intangible aszats

Gifoss cofrying amount
Balanes ag nt March 53, 2020
Addltions

Dispazaly

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions

Dispazaly

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Amartization

Silance 35 at MMarch 34, 2020
Additlons

Dispasals

Palance as at March 31, 2021
Addittani

Dizgosals

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Het carrying ameunt
Aj 8t March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 7021
As at March 31, 2022

OGN Finance Private Lmited

Notas to the consdlldated linancial statements for the year anded March 31, 2022

{All Amount in Rs. In milllons, unless atherwizs stated)

T Software Total
15.468 15.85
35 2325
= 190 3991
1523 3523
— . R ]
= [RT} [FE1
5,00 508
17.11 1713
16,69 1685

33.50 EERT]

i 755
22.80 2280
3141 3131




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

17  Qther non- financial assets

i3

Capital advance
Prepaid expanses

Balances with statutary / government autharities
Advance salary

Advances given to vendors

Other non-financial assets

Total

Assats held for sale

Assets under settlement (see note below)

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

. 613
104.16 8909
5.05 653
0.04 a
93.32
2.35 L1112
204.91 10327
143.83 18935
143.88 18935

Note : These assets represent assets acquired from the Helding Company's borrowers as a part of Group's risk management
strategy. In these cases, the Holding Company had entered into settlement agreement as a prudent measure by the
management wharein the borrower was approached and there was a mutual consensus between the Holding Company and
borrower to transfer the asset in the name of the Holding Company towards settlement of the loan amount.

Basis the development during the current year, the Halding Company, on prudent basis, has written off asset under

settlement amounting to Rs. 45,97 milllon.
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iil} the af

il the smount of interest paid by the Buyer in terms ol section 16 of MSMED Act, along with the amaunts ef the

1] The Prinepal amaunt 5nd the inferfest dus thereon remaining unpaid ta any supailer al year end

DMI Financa Private Limited

Naotes to the eonselidated financial statemeants for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amaunt in As. In millians, unless otherwlse stated)

Payibles
Trade payables

Total oulstanding duszs of miera antespriges ang small enterprizes [See
niale i below )

. Tolal outstanding duez af creditors other than micro enterarlses and

small enterorises

Dilar payohles
Total autstanding dues of micra sntsegrises nnd small enterprises (Sae

nate i peliow |
Tutal autstanding dues of craditors atler than ierg enterprises and

small enterarises

Tatal

Trade payable and ather payahle ageing schadule

Asatil March 2022

Asal March 31,2022 As al March 31,3021

30,73 160,74
697.23 -1580
752.02 137,55
iroar 128.80
7087 A0

Partigylars Less than 1 year 1.7 years 2-3 years PMare than 3 years Taral

Tetal cutitanding dues of micro enterprises and small entaprives

94,79 - - ; 9479

Tetal outstanding dues of creditars eihar than micr entarprises and

smill enterprises 1,037.13 35,90 510 3.80 1.C7710
Disputed dues of micra enterprises and amall enterprises ) R

Cisputed dues of creditors other than micre enterprizes and small

entarprises pl . - .
Tatal 1,127.01 35.91 5.10 3.80 1, 371.81
Asat 31 March 2021

Particulars Less than 1 yoar 1-2 years 2.3 yaars fare than 3 years Total

Tettal aurstanding 2ues af micra enterprises and small enterprises 11075 . N i s
Tatal autitanding duas of creditors other than micro sntersfiies and S Vi

small anterprises st " i) 3 e
Dlspuitad dues of micro emarprises and small enterprizes y & 3

Disputed dues of craditors ather thin mricro enterprises and small

entargrises - - -
Total 7Ly 14.27 9,61 - H=6.35

Amgunt autstanding If Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Dovelopment Entarprises

Based on the responses received from cortain suppliers, the Group has ceitain dues ta supgliers ragistered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 | W=ShiED

Act'). The disclosUres oursuant te Hie sald MEMED Act ars nt fallowe:

- Principal ameunt
- Interest thersan

ayment

due and payabie for the year of delay In making payment {which has been paid bt

beyand the appointed day during the yoar] but without edding the interest specifi=d undar the MSRFD Azt

i} the amount of interest accrued and remaliing unpaid

u] the amount ol Turther interest remalning due and payablo aven in the suscerding years, until such dare when

the interasl dues above are actually paid to the small investar

Asat March 31,2022 Asal March 31, 2021

94.79 180,75
0.0% -

_k,é:p ;
MEW DEI i;‘;
o \-151 / "‘!'r{-'
o —R
~ j/

e
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DM Finance Private Limited
Notes ta the consalidated finsncial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
(Al Amaunt in Rs. In millians, unless othenyise stated)

As at March 31, 2022 Asat March 31, 2021
Dabit secutltles [at amortised cast)
Non convertlble debentures (rafer note 20.1) 18.552.37 1R 551,59
1&5_552 17 18,551,609
-t -
Secured ** 48937 A98.69
Unsneurad 18,083 00 1885500
Toml 18,552.27 18,551.68
Dbt szeurities in ndla 1B,552.17 1B.551.63
Debt securities sutslde india - S
Total 18,552.27 10,5516

Sucurad agalnst excluslve lloating cargs by way 6f hypothazation of laans and recsivables of the Halding Company of Rs. 283,22 milllons {previsus yaar As

725 millians),

The Holding Company has notereated the Debenture fademptian reserva a1 1t 1 nat mandatorily required in accordance with pravislans of the Campanles Agt

1013,
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Secured
Term loans
From hanks {Sae nete | and G balow)

Cash eredit and overdraft
From banks {Sae nota | below)

Unsacured
Term loang
From Individuals [See nete (v belaw)

Fram Corporates [See note iv below)
Eram banks

Berrowings in Inda
Barrowings cutsida indla
Total

Motes:

21 Borrowings (athar than debt securitics) {at amartisnd cost)

DMI Finance Private Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statoments for the year ended parch 31, 2022
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless atherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 3:, 2021
871710 11811y
248,43 .
&lﬁ_jji 21811
815 &
1157 =
.82
) :
B,268.07 118119
8,988.07 118119

1} Secured against exciusive floating charge by way of hypathecation af leans snd recejvables of the Halding Company to the cxtent of Rs, 14,257 92 millions (Pravieus sear: Rs:

2.397.07 millions).

W] Exehiisivn Hypotheeation charge an the standard receivables of the Halding Campany upte L35 times, at all times and eash credil (2 repayvable an demand

lif) Tarms af repsyment of borrowings as on March 31, 2022 are as fallows:

Lendar Dishursement Repaymont Rate of Intarest | Security caver Quistanding a1 on Outstanding zs an
Amount March 31,2022 March 31, 2921
Bank of Baroda 1,000 15 quarterly lrlﬂﬂmenll 26 00%clD 5% 1385 218.50 494,24
Bank of farada 500 16 thily install ] =6 00%4c10,5% 133% 373.33 <97 0%
Bank of Baroda 500 16 quarterly instailments »6,00%<10.5% 133% 19750
Knrnalakn Bank Lirmiled 200 11 guarlerly install 5 =6 00%<10.5% 125% 163.27 2
Bank of Maharashira 500 42 monthly Installments >6 00%<10.5% 1354, 476.93 .
HOFEC Bank Limited 300 16 guarterly installment =6.00%=10.5% 133% . 55.21
HOFC 8ank Limitad 7510 8 guarterly Ii >5.003:210.5% 125% 512,54 s
HOFC Bank Limitad 200 # guarterly installments =6 00%=10.5% 125% 757.04 5
State Bank OF India 1,400 15 quarkarly 1“5“'15“!!0(! =h 004<10.5% 125% BE5. T4
Karnataka Bank Limited 2500 11 guartetly installments =6 00%<10.5% 125% 121.86
Eq[a_“l&-\ﬂgllinﬁu bunk Limited 400 24 monthly install ] »8,00%<10.5% 133% 34944
|indusind Bank Limited 500 12 quarterly install 13 36.00%<10.5% 133% 48% 74
| Punjab Mational Aank 500 35 manthly installments >6.00%<10 54 133% 483.82 -
Sauth Indian Rahk Limited 300] 14 quarterly install =6,00%<10.5% 133% - 85.61
Salith idian Bank Limited 500 15 guarterly install =6, 00%<10,5% 1258 449,04 >
Indian Bank 750 15 guarterly limants e 135% 746,57 &
AU Small Finance Bank Limited A5(0 36 manthly installmants =0 0E<10.5% 110% = 0482
Union Bank of Indla Limitad ] 14 q_!armiu """‘1‘.‘.‘1"“"" =6, 00%<10.5% 133% A 27.17
small industrios Dove opment Bank 100 7 monthiy Instaliments >B.00%<10,5% 125% - 20.00
of India —
State Bank Of India __ 2,000 15 quarlerly install =6 00%<10,5% 125% 1,985.82
HOFE Bank Limited * 3 18 manthly install =6 00%<10 5% N 2.82 -
Total 8,719.92 | 134118

*Unsecured loan taken by one of the subsidiary under Guaranteed Emergincy Cradit Line schems

The chargas satisfaction which yst to be registercd with Aegistrar of Campanial (ROC) a5 at 31 March, 2022 are as Tollows:

Dun data for satisfaction

Brief description of satlsfaction Locatlon of ROC
Bank of India Dalhi

Not yel registered

ROC on recelpt of NOC fram HOL,

Resonlogey
The loan waz ebtained from consortium of banls with Rank of India
aeipg the lead banker. The loan has beon completely paic in thae
year 1018, Due to involvement of miltiple banks, NOCs frore all the
oanks are requirad by the lead banker to ssus NOC or the
satlsfaction of Dbt The Haolding Company Is following up with all]
the invalved banks to obitaln the NOC for setisfaction of chamge. The
Holding Company shall file for the satisfaction of charge with the|

v} Unsecured loans from individuals and corporate afe repayable on demand,




DMI Finance Private Limited
Ngtas ta the conselidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All Amount In Rs. In milllons, unless atherwise stated)

Additlonal Notes:

|} Sneured term |nans from hanks arnunting to Rs. 8,717.10 millions and carry rate of interast |n the fanpe of 6.00% to 10.50% p.a, The loans arg having tenure af 2 to 4 year wam the
date of dishursement and are repayable in both menthly and quarterly installments, The secured term loans are secured by hypothecation {nucluslve chargs) of tho book d =bt
recelvables of the Holding Company,

I} There are no term lsans from finanzlal Institutions,

1ii) The Group has not defaulted in the repaymant of dues to its lenders,

iv| The Graup has net declared as wiilull defaulter by any of banks, financial Institution or any other lender

v} The Greup has been submitting monthly/quarterly receivable/stack data with the lendars as per the pravison af sanetion [etters and thars are no discrapancles betwzen
receivable/stack data submitted to the lenders and book of accounts,

¥) The carparate guarantaa given by the Holding Company for barrowings of fellow subsidiary an which charge is created on the assets of company have nat basn cansidered or the
disclosure a5 their eharge i3 not due for the satilfaction.




DMI Finanee Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

22 Lease liabilities

Leasea liabilities
(Refer note 47)

23 Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due

- Debt securities

- Barrowings ather than debt securities
Others

24 Provisions
Frovision far gratuity (refer note 40)
Provisian for compensation absences

25 Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable
Advances for goods and services
Prepaid Payment Instrument balances
Security Deposit
Dthers

As at As at
March 31, 2022 *© March 31, 2021
276.36 242,29
276.36 242.29
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
156.43 156.43
6.44 0.67
. 123
162.87 158.33
34.56 23.24
52.04 34.26
86.60 57.50
64.48 44.71
33.75 -
0.22 a
4,71 335
0.35 =
103.51 48.06
] o :‘ll.-;:{,:\
) (—
:. g 'Jl“j::-_'ﬂ
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DI Finance Private Limited
Notes ta the consolldated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
[All Amount inn Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Equity sharn capital

Az at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Na. of shares Amaunt fo. of sharas Armaunt
Authorized share capital - =
Erquily shares of Rs. 10 sach B, LU, 00,000 9,650.00 96, 50,00,000 9550.00
Compuliorily convertible praference shares of As. 10 sach 3,50,00,000 350,00 3.50.00,000 asa.an

_1,00,00,00,000 10,000.00 1,00,00,00,000 10,300,009

. Issued, subscribed and pald up
Fully called-up and paid-up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 gach B6,50, 78,001 £,550,78 £4,70,35,533 6.320.36
Sub total (A) £5,50,78,001 5,550.78 64,2035 533 632035

Partly called-up and paid-up

Equity sharas of Rs. 10 each 573,145,400 16.22 573,15400 1622
Sub total [0} 573,15 400 16,27 _ 573,15 400 15.22

Tatal (A+8) 71.23,33,401 A,567.00 69,91,50933 633650

The reconelliation of equity shares autstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Balance at the beginning of yaar 69,94,5(,933 6,436,568 61,62,92,55G 539294

Changes in squity share capital dus to prior paricd srors
Restated balance at the begirning of the perind £ .
Shares issued during the year 1,10,a2,768 13p a2 8,10,56,367 13057

First call maney called on party poid up shares - - 1307
Balance at the and of year 71,23,93,401 6,367.00 53,93,50,933 6,436.58
Shares held by halding Company
As at March 31, 2022 Asat March 31, 2021
No.of sharag % holding Mo, af shares % hoding
DI Limited 1,98,89,603 72.58% 51,0889 613 74.34%
51,98,89, 603 72.98% 51,98,89,603 *4.34%

As per records of the Halding Company, including its ragister of sharehalders/ members and othe; declarations received from shareholdars regarding beneficial inter sat, the
ahsug shargholding represents both legal and banaficial swnerships af shares

Details af shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the Campany

Hama of the shareholder A5 at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Wo. of shargs % haolding Mo, of shares % holling
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
[l Limited 51,98,89,603 72.98% 51,98,89,803 "1.34%
N5 Ganesha 5.4, 64735441 a.08% 64735441 9.26%
K22 {rafar (i) below) 5,73,15.400 8.05% 5,73,15.400 8.10%

Note: As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from sharsholders regarding beseficial
intarest, the above shareholding reprasants both legal and beneficial awnerships of sharas

During the previous year, the Holding Company has ssued 1,30,42,468 equity sharcs comprising of 107,62,812 8. 10 per share at As. 209,75 per shara {ineluding srmium
ol Rs. 198.7% per share) and 12,79,656 equity shures of fs. 10 per sharc at applicabla exercise price undar the FSOP plans. The amount recaived on thess issues afgmgates
13 RS, to Re. 2,342.61 million,

The Holding Company had issued 2,7783,195 Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares [“CCPS") namely Series B, Scries €, Serfes D, Serled €, Serles F and Sefies G 1o
dilferent halders from time to time. Ax per the terms of kssue of COPS, tha CCPS were converted into 2,00,56,804 ardinary equity shares of the Campany on Noveraber &,

019




DM Finance Private Limited
Motes to the consalidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amaunt I Rs_ In millians, unless atherwise stated)

26.4 Detalls of shares held by promoters

Particulars As 131 March 2022 Asat 31 March 2021
Equity shares of Rs. 10 oach fully paid up ==
Ha of sharas at the beginning of the year 51,98,69,603 43,89,.9,927
Chanye during the year - 8.09,+9,681
e of shares at the end of the year 51,098,89,603 51,%98,29,603
% of to1z] shares Tr08% 74,34%
% change during the year -1.83% 4 383%

DI Limited is the promater of the Holding Campany

26.5 Rights, preferences and restrictions
The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par valus af #5.10 per share Each holder of equity share |5 entitled ta ann vote per share, Tha fevidend
proposed by the Board of Directars (5 subjact to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the avent of liquidstion of the Holding Cowpany,
the halder af rquity shares will be enlitied to recoiva remaining assety of the Company, after distribution of all prefecantlal amounts. The distribution will be in proge tion to
the number of the equity shares hald by the sharehaldears

26.6 Aggregate number of shares Issued for consideration ather than eash during the fiue years
The Holding Company has not issund any shares puriuant Lo a contract without payiment being received in cash nor allotted as Tully paid up by the way of bonus sha @5 and
there has nat been any bty back of shares in the current period and the immediately preceding faur years

26.7 Uncalled and Unpaid Capital
Thare are 5,73,15,400 aquity shares issued by the Holding Company agalnst which, the Holding Company has received Rs. 16,52,47,259 (including securities Premium of Ry

14,50,25,873) Balance amount is not called up by the Holding Company
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27 Other coulty

SRCUFTAS pfairium

Capital redemption reserye

Statilony reserve Ufs 4510 of AR Act
Shara based mayment outstanding resene
Share warrant resarve )
Rutained aatnligs

Cther comprehensve Incomsa

Uplrgnt manies recelved on share warrant
Total

Sequrltles gremlum

Dpéilig halance

Add | Presmitien on shares issued during the year
{inclunlng shares (ssuzd under Employoes Stock

Ootion olan)
Closing balance

Capltal redampiion reigren
Opening balance

Add 1 Additions dufing the year
Clasing balanca

Statutary ratarva ufs 45-1C of AR Act
Opening balance

Add ; Trangtar during the year from Surplus in
Llasing balance

Share based payment oulstanding reserve
Opening balance

Add: Grantedfvested durieg the year

Luid : Exprciied dufing the year

Closing balanca

Shara warrant reservg
Opening balance

Addd : Additlon during the vear
Classing halanga

fotalned carnings

Opening balance

Fadd : Prafit for the year

Less. Loat an subsequent acquisition in

Less ; Transfer (o reserve fund as per zectisn 45
Closing balance

Uplront manles receivied on share warrant
Opening balance

Add © Amaunt Feceived dufing the year
Closing balance

Othiar Camprandnzglvs Income

Opening balance

Add: Remeasurement galn an dafined kenafit
Adid  Galn on Falr Value changes (Debt and
Closing balanece

Securlty pramtium

Securinng premium fapresents pramium recelved an (ssue of Sharss, The amount is ulihzed in occordanze with tha pravisians of she Companies Aot 2013

oAl Finanee Private Umited
lidated financial

(Al Amaount (A Ris, In millions, uniess otherw|se stated)

ements far the year ended March 34, 2022

Ag at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 202,
15.707.55 2348535
L L5l
100407 aIT-l6
Wm0 14pas
1224
433084 3.68%17%
68536 5784
a.5u
) 32,121.2% IB.62657
2349505 14,547 17
1,21230 8,947 38
25,707.55 23,39535
nu E121
) e B1E1
97746 832834
11661 4432
1,094.07 97734
14p.95 ah.al
7358 75.'8
{2748} {1.81)
187.02 140,05
1244 3
1254 -
3,873 76 1.845..0
FLERE 269,18
(784) =
11651} (44.22)
4,312.54 3,873,6
Az at March 31, 2022 As atMarch 31, 2023
050 -
0.50 &
57.84 5135
agr iz4
w2115 5.5
585,06 5724
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Lnal Finance Private Limited
Motes o the consglidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al Amount In Rs, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Capital el ariptinn reserue
The sama had basn creatad in aczatdancs with provisions af the Companiss Act 2013 on bury back ol shares

Statutory reserve ufs 45-IC of 800 Act
The reserua is ernated as per the provision of Scction 43 {IC) of Aeisrve Bank of India Act, 1994 This s 2 rastriciad roserve and no dppropristion can te made from this rte rie —ing
eenpllor the purpuses s may be prescribed by Resare: Gank of India.

Share optlon outstanding sccount
The Faiarum o usud b recognise thar fair valie of the aptions [wuod o enpidysss af ihy Helding £ y and subsidiary compariiss under Holding Camipany's amployee stask acion

alan,

Shate warrant reserve
The rezerve bs used ta recegnlo the fair value of the warrants bsued o consulzants of the Group,

“etained carnings
Aelained earningi v accumulated surplus and represents total of alf prafits retainsd sinces the Holding Company’s incepti ined dngs are cradited with current year proits,
radurad by Insses, if any, dividend payouts, or any such cther approprialions to specilis roserves.

Upfrant manles racelvad on share warrang
Unfront manles received on share warrsnl raprasants the upfeant monies recaived againgl the share warrants isind by the Holding Comiany.

Man-coniralling Intorests )

At al March 31, 2022 Az at Mareh 31, 202 .
Salance at the beginning of the year
Share of profit for the yaar
Dividend -
Edully component af Preference Share & pital
Manezantiolling interests on acguisitizn infol Agpmit Technologies Privare Limited 7011 2
Balance at the end of the year 1.13 -
Dotalls of non-whally owned subsidiary that have eantralling interests
The table shows details af non-whnlly nwned subiidiary of tha Groop that has nonsgantralling interests:

Nami of Subsidiary Place of Incarparation and | Praportion of ownarship Interests and Prafit/floss) allacated to nen-controlling Intaress
aperation woting rlghts held by non-controlling
| Inturasts
March 31,3022 tarch 31,2021 March 31,2022 March 31,7021
Appnit Technologies Private Limited India 5.06% . 28.13 -
Particulars Ag at March 11, 2022
Financial assets i39.1%
Nan Financial assats 108,17
Finareiai liatilitio: 4530
Mon Financial labilites a4.03
Equity atizbutable to the awneers of the company 2382
Hon-zontralling interests 2913
Particulars Yoar andod
Rarch 31, 2022

Intame
Espghis
Frofit/{lass] far tha year
#rafit/{foss) attributable o the owners of the Company.
Peafit/{loss) atttibutable to the nen-santrolling intarests
Proficf{les) far the year
thar comp inenme atirit & tathe awnors af the Comoany
CQrhar comprenensive incsme atteibutable to the nen-contralling (nterests

Total comprohensive income of the year

Quring the ewrrent yaar as the Company aeruired the subsidiany there is e aperational actlvities alter the acquisiion.




B! Financa Private Limited
Motes io the consolidatad financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
(All Amaunt in s, in millions, unless otharwise stated)

19 Interest incoma

Yoar ended March 31, 2022

Year ended March 31, 2021

Onfinandal  On financial assets O finandal assots On financial On fnanclal assats  On financlms fssets
instruments medsured at measured at falr Instrumenis 1 at ed st lalr
measured at fair Amertlsed cast unlug theaugh OCI measured at fair Amarised cast value through OCT
valirn thrgugh Profit wvalue thraugh Prafit
B lass B Loss
Intarast income on portfalia loans 7,180,24 apaa 6,354.70 18.35
Interast incarme an fAveitments 2319 Hoas 154 B4 - 9264 17536
interast an depssits with bank 13,06 - 34 94 :
2319 s 185.06 R 19431
Tatl interest Income 1,837.41 ; " £915.93
30 Fegiand rommisslon incame
Amount Invalead Revenue booked
Vearended March  Yoor ended fdarch  Year ended March | Vear ended Viardh
31, 2023 H, 2021 i1, 2022 31, 20A
fan on card retoad 21437 13.43 1,43 15.48
Cuneyiting foe 105,74 48,15 100,74 316.1%
Others = 2 H 10409 2676
p 13116 54,63 145.25 81,10
“includes ircame related ather fecoveries fram Consumar lasns .
31 Natgals an falr valoe chanpos
{a] Met gain an financial instryments ot fair value through pealit and loss
on finanzial Instruments deslgnatid al Talt valce through profit ar las BEI 4T Sh7.60
D) athers - -
86340 587.60
Analyshs of fale value chonges”
Amalised 71665 55.03
Untealizad 146,71 43257
963.40 S87.60
“hours thé changs from the data of lavesiment =
42 Other Incoma
Cast sharing fram group eampanies 127,08 L0338
Incorne on Treasury instrumants 1689 =
Irterait income on income tax refund a5
|tatest incame an unsectred loans LIg =
Liabilittes written hack 1704 .
Forelgn exchange galr [Ant| .08 -
RMiszellan=ous income 5.10 0,35
183.05 103.74
31 Finance costs
Interest on financlal Habllities [measurad at amonised cost)
Intefait an debt sacurities
-af hen convedtible debentures 168578 155945
Interest on karravings [other than debt securitles)
- an bank: term loan 211,88 _d17s
- an bank cach erndit/overdraft 0.58 0.3
Other Intarest expenie
-on delayed depasit sl datitary duss oos [ ¥:51
- on lzating arrangamants 1008 24.54
Other barraving eosts .14 24 81
1,916.53 1,:‘51.56_
. Year ended Year andsd
34 Fons and commission expense March 31, 2022 March 31, 2321
Szlling oartner commizsion 671.01 03,63
677,01 +)3.63




35

is

£

3.1

OMI Finance Private Limited
for tha year ended March 31, 2022

Nates o fhe ¢ lidatad financial st

(All Amauntin Bs. in milligns, unless atherwise stated)

Impalrment on {inandal instrumagnts

Year ended March 31, 2022

Yoar anded March 31, 2021

On financial On financlal On linanclal On finanglal an financlal On thnarclal
Ingtrumnnts Instrumgnts t Instruments Instruments inttruments
measured at fair maonsured at fair maagiured ot maeasurad at falr measurad at Il meagural at
walue ihough Other  value through Peofly Amortised cost value through Other  value through Profit Amartizea cast
Comprehensiun B Loz Compruhenilve B laoss
Income Incomea
Loans [T S 1074 95 .75 =k 651 a5
Ivestments 11037 6179 T4E 00 2831 195 86
Wrlte offs . - 141203 2 . 180187
Total 117.15 61,79 3,232.99 99.06 . 749,60
3,411.93 . ZRIB.79
Yaar anded ¥
Employee hencfits expanse il 3, Ao Mm.r:: ;:::H
Salsrias, wages and bonus 75,50 5726
Contributian ta prevident and other funids 24,13 755
Gratuity sepmnias raler nota 40) 1123 823
Share based paymant \s smployees 7185 75,78
atafi wallare expenzes 739 1u 44
Bt 77 J03.27
Dppraclatian and amortlzation
Dezpreciation on broperty, plant and sguipment (Sae nate 12} ¥an 216
Amartisation of right ta use assals (See not= 15) =084 1758
Amortisation of other Intangltla asiet (Se8 note 16) 15,69 .00
99.43 .12
i
dther expensos
Adverthament sxpunaes BBS 18.67
Legal and professtonal faus® 611.21 EIFN:]S
Travelling arid convayance cepenses nsy 443
Auditer's remuneratien {refer note 368.1) 1.0% 408
IT #xpwnsgs 256.10 L45.65
Rates and tases 857 1.55
fant 5,06 11.65
Goqu and sarvice tax 0120 174,95
Diractor's sitting fa 0.48 056
Caorporate taelsl recpangibility (reler note 20.3) 1842 2515
Mapeir and malntenance 14.60 330
|Rsuranca axpanse 24 010
Cradic evaluntian lea 154,27 1607
Credit rating fee 5.24 205
Customer anboarding expenses 007 2.28
Aszels held for sale written off 1597 B
Amortization of fremicm on debenturg 037 1133
Iiscellanmous =epenses 27,77 42.04
1,438.34 ML60
* includes shars warrant expanie amaunting to Rs, 3244 miillons [previaus year Rs, NIl
Auditars remunnratian {sxcliding applicabio taves] M:;:: ;:". 61?2 3 M::;"; :‘:! 1
- s audilors 280 308
fesr Tax ioruices 0,30 0.03
« for ather wervices” 0.95 0.98
4.05 4.01

*ircludes amount of INR 0.15 million naid fa erstwhile Auditer of the Halding Company.




DI Finance Privats Limited
Naotes to the consolidated financial statoments far the year endod March 31, 2022
(All Amount in Rs. inmillions, unless atherwise stated)

48.2 Corpurate soclal responsthility (CSR)

33

Inrespact of Corporate Seeial Respensiaility actlvitios, grass smaunt required t= be spent by the Groug during the vaar was s, 17,40 millions in £ 7031-21 {Previous ¥ear Rz, 2362 willinns)
dard Grenip has spent Rs, 17,40 milleny in FY 2021-22 [Pravious: Year Rz 3367 emillians]

Year ended Yaar enlled
March 31, 2022 farch 31,3021

Grazs amount unspent far thee st yaar . .
Gross ameunt Faquired to be spent by the group duiing the yoar 18,43 2515
Amount snent during the yaar 1842 265.15
Camiustion/acguisition of any assal f )
Paid In cash 142 2515
Yetto be pald In cash . 2
Nature of T30 Activilles

Education, Hulrltlen and Women Empowermant 14.6E 16,40
B ting and developmant h=althzare 377 5.1
Pramaling Indian Claszical art and culture amang yauth 50 0.30
Fralning and heiping Indian Athletns to win Slymelc Gokd modaky - 113
Provide supporting In eradicat'on of hunger oo

Flotes:
2] There |5 ne transactien with related partizs as detined under the IND A% 24 Nelated Barty Diselaiused’

bi There it na prevlslon outstarding in the fooks as at Mareh 31, 2022

<} During the pravieus firanclal year (2020-21), the Holding Campary hax spent excess amuunt of INR 0,77 million, 3uch escass ameunt was set olf against the C5R wipenditure sperT during
the financial year 2021-23 puriuant to the pravisicns of section 135 af tha Campanies Act, 2013 read with the Caompanies ICarparate Secial Responninilisy Balizy) Aulas, 1014 and Ca e
{Corporate 2ocial fespansilility Palizy) Amendmant Rules, 2021,

Vear ended March ‘Yoar anded Ylarch

Earning per shara {EPS) 31,2022 - insy
tet prafit attrlbutable ra squity shareholdars L8303 269.20
Mt grafit fof she yoar for basic ERS 3303 26328
Dilufive iImpact of convertible Instruments = ;

Rt grafit far the yeas lor dilutive ERS 583,03 260,28
Mominal value of equity shares [in Rs,] 10,00 14.00
Waighted-aversge number of equity shares for baslc EPS {Face value of share Rs. 10 each) 70,34,33,053 61,5556,623
Weighted-average number of squity shares for diiutive EPS {Face valuo of shara Re. 10 each) 71,55,44,050 a9,61 77,457
Gasic EPS n.a3 042

Dilutive £RS n.81 133
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amaunt in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

40 Retirement benefit plan

Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is 3 pension plin undar which thy Group pays fixed contributions; thera is no legal ar constructive obligation to pay urther
contributions. The assets of the plan are hald separately from those of the Group in 3 fund under the control of trustees.

The total expense charged ta income during the current year Rs. 24.13 millions (previous yedr: Rs. 24.56 millions) rapresents contributions payahle ta thase
plans by the Group at rates specified in tha rules of the plan,

Defined benefit plan
The Group has a defined enefil gratuity plan. Every emplayee wha has camplatad flue years ar mors af service gats a gratuity on departure at 5 days

salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service, The scheme is unfunded.
Brovision for unfunded Gratulty for all amployass is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year, Major drivers I actuarial
assumptions, typlically, are years of service and employee compensatian. Pursuznt ta the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard {IndAs) 12 an
‘Employee Benefits’, commitments are actuarially detarmined using the ‘Brojected Unit Credit’ Method Gains and losses on changes in actuarial
assumptlons are accounted for in the "Dther comprehensive feame"

The following tables summarise the components of net beneiit expense recognised In Lthe statement of profit or loss and the funded status and arvourits
recagnised In the balance sheat for the respective plans:

Changes In the defined benefit obligation: As at As at
__March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balanca at the beginning of the year 24,67 17.44
Current service cost 0.65 7.05
Ittersest cast 1.64 1.17
Benelits Paid (0.22) 3
On sequisition of Subsidiary 012 -
Remeasurament {gain} / lass {1.30) {2.45)
Balance at the end of the year 34.56 2322
Amaunt recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: Year ended Year endod
__March 31, 2022 March 31, 2921
9,65 7.05

Current service cost

Interast cost on defined benefit abligation 1.4 117
Net impact on profit before tax 11.29 3.23
Amaunt reeagnised in tha other comprehensive income: Year ended Yeor ended

March 31, 2022 March31, 2321

Return an pian assets (axcluding amounts included in net intarest sxpensa)
Actuarial changes arlsing from changes in damographic assumplions ;
Actuariai changes arising from changes In financlal assumptions {2.84) J
Experlence adjustments 1.55 {2.45)
Impact on other comprehensive income {1.30) {2.45)

The principal assumptions used in datermining gratulty and past-emplayment benefit abligations for the Holding campany's plans are shewn below:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2421
Ecanomic assumptions
Discount rate 7.1B% 5.76%
Future salary increases 6.00% 3.00%
Demographic assumptions
Retirement aga a0 60
Martality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2012 100% of 1ALM 2012-
14} 14)
Attrition at ages (withdrawal rate)
(i) up ta 30 years 3.00% £,00%
{il} From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 1.00%
1.00% -O0%

(i) Ahove 44 years




DM Finance Private Limited
Nates ta the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unlpss otherwise stated)
Nata: The discaunt rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bands at the accounting date relevant to currency of 1enalit
payments for a term that malchas the llabilities Salary growth rate s Holding Cormpany's lang term hest estimate 2% to salary increases and takes caunt
of inflatiun, seniority, promation, busingss plan, HR policy and other relevant Factars an lang term basls as provided In relevant Accounting standard.

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31 2021
Impact of the change in discount rate
Impact due to Increase of 0.50 % {2.50) {1.85)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 275 2,08
Impact of the change jn salary increase
Impact due tu inérease of 0.50 % 272 2.0
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % {2.48) [1.85)

The following is the maturity profile of gratuity:

Expacted payment for future years As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31

Oto 1 year .54 0.16
1to 2 year 0.57 0.40
2ta 3 year (.60 .41
3to 4 year 0.64 0.46
4 to 5year 065 0.48
51t 6 year 071 039
Bth year onwards 3n.21 21.44
Total expected payments 33.91 23.94

eSS




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes ta the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amaunt in fs, In milliens, unless otherwise stated)

a1 Disclasures in respect of Related Partles as per Indlan Accounting Standard (IndAS) = 24 "Related Party Disclosures

[} Listof related parties

Haolding company
A Umitad

Assoclate
DM Alternatives Private Limifed

Fellow subsidiaries
DM Consumer Credit Arivate Limited
DM Hoslng Financo Private Lirmited

Key managerlal parsonnal {KAAP)
Mame

Mr. Yuvraja Chanaliva Singh
dr, Shivashish Chatterjce

Designatian
Haint Managing Director
laint Managing Director

Mg, Bina Singh Diractor
Mrs. Jayati Chatterjes Director
Mr. Gurcharan Das Directar
MF. Gaurav Burman Diracter
Mr, Tamer Amie Director
ir. Nipender Eochhar Cirectar

Mr. Jatinder fhasin
M, Krishan Gopal
M. Sahib Pahwa

Relatives of KMP
Mrs, Ballika Singh
Mi. Premita Chatterjne

Chief Finencial Officer {upte 17 March 2021)
Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f. 18 Mareh 2021)

Campany Secfelary

Enterprises ever which key managemant personnel and relatives of such persannel sxerciss dlgniflcant influence wiih whom transactiens have bean

underiaken:
K3VZ, Partnership Firm
DK Alternative investment Fund

Quickwork Technologies Private Limiled

Entiry with Significant influence
Canesha Fixed Incema Limited

{b) Signiflcant transsctions with related partios:

Nama of relatad party Nalture of transacilon For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2072 March 31, 2021

DM Housing Finance Pravate Limited Cast share recavery 54 70 70.18
Share based payment a7 116
Interest on foan . 2078
Azpayment of loan . 700.00
Heimburiemant of expense paid by 3167 .
relsted parly on behalf of entity

DA Alternative investment Fund Repayment of loan - 200,00
‘ntersst expensas 2575

DR Alternatives Frivate Limited Cost share recavery 60.70 3346
Share based payment 013 0.74
Reimbiirsement of expense ingurred on 549 *
hehall of related party

Ganesha Fised Incoma Limited Interest expenses 1139 1136




ORI Finance Private Limited

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements for the yoar anded March 31, 2022

(All Ampunt in fis. In milliens, unioss otherwise stated)

Nampe of related party

Natura of transaction

For the year ended

For the year ended

Mar {1] Narch 11, 2023
Ol Limited lssueaf gquily shares 1419 31
Mr. Sahib Pahiva Loan f advanee given . .48
Interzst income o.n3 0.05
Remuneration 518 4.12
Luan received back 0.51 n.as
trs. Bina Singh Sitang foe 012 010
Share Warrants Fxpense 07z o
ir. Yuyvraja Chanakya Singh Remuneration an70 87,10
Post erployment bansfits 4813 .36
Issie of equity shargs i 115.39
M. Shivazhish Chatterjee Remitiiesation 16.31 56.38
Past emplaymant benefils 035 0.36
liaue af equity shares 119.39
Brs, Jayatl Chatterjee Sitting faes 072 0.18
Shars Warrants Expensy oy :
Tr, Gurcharan Das sitting feos 012 0.ig
Share Warrants Expense a7 .
¢, Nipender Kochhar Sithing fees D22 016
Share 'Warrants Espenae a1t @
Rr. Jatinder Bhasin Remunpratien NA 1022
Wt Krishan Gopal Remuniralinn 8,35 n67
Ouickwork Technologies Private Limited ather Expenses 1.08
Parimita Chatterjes Consultancy Fea .71 .
K2vz IRsuinr of wguity shares - 14313
(e} Dutstanding balancos with relaved parties:
Mame of related party Nature of transaction Az at Asat
_Mareh 31, 2022 tarchi3i, 2021
iir. Sanib Pahwa Loan receivabie - n.ag
DRALAltarfatives Private Limited Employee Stock
Option Plap 4.96 339
recoverable
Ondl Housing Finance Privale Limited Employes Stack
Optien Plan payable 999 9.23
orparate 1,329.98 4,4a7.17
Garantee
Gunesha Fixad Income Limited Borrowings from )
Haon-convertible 134.00 134.00

Others

dehentures

Curingg the Yeor ended March 31, J022, the Holding Company has bought back cerltain non canvertible dehentures fram Mr Sahib Pahwa fos

consideration of il {previous year: R 0,64 millions).

During the Year ended March 31, 2022, the Holding Company has bought back certain non canvertlble dabantyres fram ORI Housing Finance Privale
Limitad fer consideratian of Nil {previous year: fts 176 48 millians)

{d) Disclasure pursuant ta Schedule V of Clause A (2) of Regulation 53(1) of the SEBI [Listing nbilgations and disclesure Requirements) Regulatians,

2015:

There is no loen or advance given by the Campany to either Holding company or Subsidiary companizs.
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Impact of COVID 19 pandemic

Fstimates and assoclated assumptions applied in preparing these financial rasults, especially for determining the impairment allowance “ar
the Helding Cornpany's financial assets (Laans), are based an histarical experience and other emarging/forward Iooking factors on acco Lnrof
the pandemic. The Holding Company bellevas that the factors considered are reasanable under the current cireumstances. The Hald ng
campany has used estimatlon of potential strass on probability of default and exposure at default due ta Covid-14 situation in devieloprng
the estimates and assumptions to assess the impainnent loss allowance on loans, Given the dynamic nature of the pandsmic situation, these
estimates are subjects to uncertainty and may be affectad by severity snd duration of the pandemic. In the event, the impacts are mare
severe ar pralonged than anticipated, this will have 3 correspanding impact on the carrying value of financial value of the financial assets,
the financial pesition and parfarmance of the Halding Company

The date on which the Code on Sacial Security, 2020{the "Code") ralating to employze henefits during employment benefits will coma irto
affect [s yet to be natified and the refated rules are yat to be finalizad. The Group will svaluata the code and its rules, assass the impact |f
any, and account for the same when they become sffective.

In tarms of Requirement as per RE| natification no. RBI/2019-20/1 70 DOR(NBFC) LC.PDLNO.105/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 30
implermentation of Indlan Actounting standards, Nan-banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to creats an impairment reserve -or
any shartfall In impairmant allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income Recognition, Assot classification and provisloning {IRACP) nares
fincluding pravision on Standard Asset) The impairment aliowances under Ind AS 109 made by the Holding Company exceeds the tocal
Pravision required under IRACP {including Standard Asset provisioning),as at March 31, 2022 and accordingly no amaunt |s raquired to Je
transferred to Impalrment reserva

In accordance with notification no. RAI/2021-22/17 NORSTR.AFC,4/21.04 048/2021.22 datad April 7, 2021 issued by the R8I, all lendig
institutions shall refund/adjust ‘interest on interast’ to ol borrowers (ncluding these wha had availed warking capital facillties durlng the
moratorium period, irrespective of whether maratorium had besn fully or partially availed, or not availad. Pursuant ta those instructiens, the
Indian Banks Association (IBA) in censultation with other industry participants/bodics publishec the methodology for calculation of e
amount of such ‘interest on interast’. Accordingly, during the pravious year, the Holding Carmpany estimated the sald amaunt and made
provision for refund/adjustmant in these financlal statements,

Disclosures required as per Master directions and circulars issucd by Reserve Bank of India (HBI) have been given in standalune financal
statements ol the holding company, therefore same have not been reproduced hera.

During the previous year, in compliance with Schems for grant of ex-gratia payment of differenca between compound fnterast and simda
Interest for sik months to borrowers in specified Inan accounts (March 1, 2020 ta August 31, 2020), the Holding Company granted the beneit

amounting to Rs. 93.47 millions ta its borrowers,
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DMI Flnance Private Limited
Notes to the cansalidated financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amount in Rs. In milllens, unless otherwlse stated)

48 Taxexpenics
The majar components of incame tax expense for the years anded March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are -

Year ended Year endad
March 31,3022 March 33, 2u21
COFfort G 676.15 348,13
Deferred tax cradit (457 54) (236.80)
Income tax expense repartad in the statement of profit or loss 21B.61 21.33

The major components of tax expense and Its reconciliation to expected lax expense based an the anacted tax rate applicable to the Group is 25 168%
(March31, 2021: 25.168%) and the reported tax expense in statemant of profit and loss are as fellaws:

Year ended Year ended

arch 31, 2022 March 31, 2821
Prafit before tax 805,21 321.10
Income-tax rate 25.168% 25 168%
Expected tax expense 202.66 20.81
Expenditure disaliowed 503.00 4E5.68
Income not subject to tax . 0.14)
Deductions {487.62) (4z8.23)
Tax for earlier yoars 0.57 321

Tax expense 218.61 £1.33




DM Flnanca Private Limited

MNates ta the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All Amount In Rs. In millions, unless athenwise stated)

43 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Within 12 After 12 months Tatal Within 12 After 12 months Tatal
manths maonths

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents £,829.64 5,829.64 253391 :533.91
Bank balanee ather than cash and cash equivalents 294,66 234,66 257.21 - 267.31
Trade recoivables 61,03 - 61.03 62.11 . 62,11
Loans 30,117.80 16,683.35 46,801.15 16,971.61 14,126.12 3.,097.73
investments 7,256.57 3,033.00 10,289.57 15,718.40 2,832,685 12,551,058
Dther financlal assets 1,582.52 27.56 1,610.08 2,017.09 20.26 1,037.35
Men- financial asscts
Current tax assets {ner) 296.13 - 296.13 232.47 * 232.47
Deferred tax assats [net) - 880.14 B80.14 - 633,87 GI3.87
Praperty, plant and equipment . 104.64 104.64 - 116.23 116.23
Right to uie assets 50.30 184 65 234,95 46.26 164 45 210.71
Intangible assets - 1Al 314 . 22.80 22.80
Capital work in prograss 23.27 23.27 3 2
Goodwill . 253.53 253.53 . - =
Dther non- financial assets 204.91 . 204.91 94.66 B.61 103.27
Assets held for sale 143.88 143,88 189.85 189.85

46,837.44 21,221.55 glnss.ss 38I133.57 17@24.39 EEUSB.SB
LIABILITIES AND Y
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
A) Trade payables
{1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 94,79 94,79 110.7% 110.75
small enterprises
[if} toral outstanding dues of creditors ather than 697.23 697.23 416,80 416.80
micrn enterprises and small entarprisas
B] Dther payables
[i] total outstanding dues of micro antarprises and
small anterprises
{1} total owtstanding dupes of creditors other than 372.87 379.87 22880 228.80
micra enterprises and small entarprises
Dabt securiting 3,200.00 15,352.27 18,552.27 18,551.69 18:551.69
Barrowings (other than dabr securities) 3,397.96 5,590.11 8,988.07 357.93 21326 1181.19
Liabilities against laased assets 44,89 231.37 276,36 39.33 202.96 242.29
Other financial flabllities 162.87 162,87 158.33 - 158.33
Non financlal liabilities
Frovisions 182 R4.7R BG.60 57.50 = 57.50
Other non-finandal liabilities 103,51 103.51 48.06 48.06
Equity
Equity share capital - B,367.00 6,567,00 6,436.58 636,58
Other equity 3212129 32,121.29 - 28,62p.57 28626.57
Maon Controlling Interest 29.13 29.13 ] -

2,083.03 58,975.85 68,058.99 h-ﬂ?.stl H!Sﬂl.ﬂﬁ EE 058.56

‘x\[ |
)5)



DM Hinance Private Limited
Moles to the o Ndared finarcial & for {he year ended Margh 31, 2022
|8l Anvaunl in As. In millians, unless othenwise stated)

50 Rtk mangzement
Introdisetlan and rizk prafile

The Halding Company s o private linance company in indis and i tegulated by the Recerve Bank OF india [RB1 0 view af the intringie nature of eparationy, the Group (s espoved (0 3 variety = s,
wehith ean he broadly classtied ashauid ity sk, credit sk, Interest iate sk and =quilly prige ri. 1L alio rubject to vanaul regulatary rizks.

Rlsl managument siructure and polleivs

Av a lending institiitlon, Girdup i =spaien 10 various fisks that ara reloted to lending Buiness and operating snvirenmeni The Prinzizal Ehpuetrs In GrouR 't fik marogemant srse e b o
medsufe and manilor the various fiksy thyl Tompany 1s subjact ta and 1o follow policos and precethiens to sddress sueh e * Group's duk management framesars o driven by Baard and i
Susl at inzluding the Audit € . tha Asset Liability Management Committee and Rist Management Comilles Group gives due impadance lo prudemt lending practices sne Have
immlemarited suitable measires for ik mitigatinn, which nzlatte serification of tredit history Tram eredit nformation Luseaus, personsl verification of a customer's busisess and rustdence, tedinical
ard legal ves fizatiany, conservatve lean ta walys

(&) Uauidity risk
Linildily ris= 15 1ne Dotential fiet lnss o an intstition arising fram either deon abillty to meat it skigitions ar o fund fersages in 315e1s ag they fall Sus withoui ineutring unarceptable 2okt or l=es

The Greup ianages liquidity risk oy mieaibiing and managing net funding reyuiramients wsing 3 matunty (adder and siculation of elimuilative surphus of daficit of funds at se'ectod matisriteedateg
which has bren adopled 25 3 standard toul The Sroup’s Assets-Liability © itew (ALER) i ibile for determining the aphrentiote miv of avsilakin fungding sources whilired 1o ensurs Jiraup
liguidity f3 managad prudenily an apprapristaly. With regard 10 e proses of fiquadity i L ALEDY alu this current segngTic and market snvirgnment, Agar-tnrm loan Fowth
aralectlangamd long-tarm strategls busingda deciziuns,

The table below summarises the maturity pratile of the undiscounted zush faws of the Group's finaneil 8552ty anid Nabilltis

March 34, 2022 upta 1 manth| Over imanth Ovar 3 Ovar 3 Crver & manths | Over 1year to| Over3 yeais | Ouver & yoars Totsl
toZmanth | manthita 3| maonths Lo 6 il yanr I ymars 1a% years
months months
Frnancial asseti
Saih and carh eaquivalant 582982 1,480 od - - .
fank balance ol than Cash and ok aqulvalents 2 . 23.00 340,30 525
Tiade reeniiablag G0l - - = - 5 .
Loant £,240.55% 437281 4,6d0.01 9,385 18 g.932.12 19,525.33 3,795,165 1,119.4%
Ineaimants 6,350,685 wn LA493.87 4189 231553 1,709.28 1,355.73 3.118.03
Eitlies fiaaneial aiirts 118747 iy 2CR59 11162 .20 - 35.55
Flnaiteial inbisties
PFaabley ara g 120.76 s 3106 06 55 To0aT . -
Delbit securitioz - Mz 14334 300.83 3,832.11 16445 48 . .
Ausrourdegs (olher than detit securithes) IR 13373 48851 LEFN ] 1.837.49 435011 1.194.70 .
Lease labdlities 435 511 602 1824 35,29 T8 95,75 Qi34
Dihar fnancial labiilizs S & il 11787 3881 . = : - .
March 11, 2021 uple Tmanth| Over Imanih Overl Qunr 3 Over E manthi | @ver iyear to| Over3Iyears | Over 5 yoars Tatad
to2month | monthsw 3 | manthito § to 1 yoar I years o5 year
manthi | manths .

Financil asseis
(Cash and 2aib ealivalents 2533491 B i . . - 253.3L
Bank nalaney ather than Sash and rash eauivalants - : 26191 530 - - e
Trade racovables 5211 - - = . £ P=X 11
Laafii 411683 L7roal 2.51207 5776.86 5,300.73 15, 466.81 13645 78595 41,1K.01
[Investments 15,138.10 4800 85837 1008.14 18815 73038 1,770.71 144020 13,398,909
Diher finansial assets 14723 - 12015 1,542.70 100,80 135 jag 15.00 2,057.45%
Financisl Hakilitlas -
Payahley S 30595 1S ot
Dabt racunitiss . 0211 GE26 LELE: B FRLAT 31,1709 23 65391
Borrcwings fethar tian dehis tecirties) 2906 I6.01 150,13 154.56 9190 43547 131.25 . LIizag
Larasa Hiakeilibing 517 5.30 %33 15.97 0.0 117.97 7264 T1a4 =a3.n

10050 {an 34 50.59 254 50 39.50 - = - §=.33

B) Cradit risk

Creadit risk afizes fram the potential that an obligor It either umeellipg 1 poifinm b sn abligatian or it abilty te medocs sweh obllg 1 {1 impaired Iing i iz (235 1o the Groug The

Group's aredil f1 < manag vork |5 eat zed nto fall
- Sanior manigament'y oversipht

- Cgunigaiional strusture

- &ystems and procedures for ldentifization, ssseptance, meastmment, monitaning and conlrolling riks.

maln

1t i the overall responsiniity «f the Grevp's senior manegement o aporove the Group's credit risk siratopy and l=nding poluis relating toevadit nizk and its management. The paliciat ire bazed as
Uhe Group's everall business tirategy and the same |s reviewed every quanar by the finlar managemant

To mafitain ericlil diseipline amd to enonciate credit risk management and esnirol prozets thers b 1 sep risk t gegartmant ind dent af loan arinatisn funetion, Th risk
management fepartmant porferma the functlon of credit i:um:\r farmulatizn, eredit fimit salting, moritaring of credit exceptions 7 axponures snd raview fmonttarg of documantailan,

Tha carrying amaunt of Hnancial 3ssets rap: % thie mas 1 crndit axp
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Motes to the ¢

Analyiis of rizk eoncentiaiisn

D Finance Private Limiped
fated financlal

Tre followirg lanle shiws e rsk concentratian by industey for the financial actets of the Graug:

Tor the year ended March 31, 2022
[AN Amaunt in Bs. In milliens, unless athe rawise stated]

Mureh 31, 3027 ~ Financlal | Government | fteal estats WaME Services B Hatal Dthert Teml |
services manufacturing
Financial asset = ==
Cuih and ¢nzh squivalents w8290 - . - - 6,80 51
Wk balanz= 2iher than Cash ard cash snquivaionts 254 56 = = 5 £ = md 58
toans - Corpadale fmuntraciunl amount af loang] - . 11187 00 P 1,686%.0% [ZEETS . I4.47594
Loans - Contumer iganz (contractual amaunt 2l lnansh 525.407 . 3279915 - 53,3:4.1
Trade raceljabies = B * . G103 . =102
Inwestimanti §,450 U5 77135 s JATHAD - 13377 | 1071957
DOthar lizancinl assets - - 1.584 50 5585 15008
Tatal 13,574.35 = 11,9144 52507 4,644.03 35,058.51 532 EL0-5.13
Mareh 3L, 2021 Financlal  |Goverament| Aeal eslste MSME Sefules & Ratall Others Toml
iervleen manufatturlng
Financlal asset
Casn and sk egivalonty 1,532.01 . - . 25451
Bank balarcn other than Cash and eash equivalonts 16721 . . - - =721
Loans - Corporata [contraeiial amaurt of loans) O 0,347,584 - 2538.08 70354 - 12,2:9.25
Loans = Comiyttar Inand {sontractual amount of laans) - - - Add.rd - 1B,683.61 - 19,1435
Receivabley 1,47 . - . 5464 1 s2.11
invastments 1507216 - 104,07 - 141043 - 20.23 18,511.05
Cther finandal assets . - = * 201818 147 205738
Total 18,7A0.55 & 10,035.71 434,74 3,346.57 21,463.97 4140 | 54,885.24

Market rlsk

Market ritk s the risk that the valun al on and of*-balanza sheet pesition of 3 financial instilutian w4l be mlverinly affacted by mowemants (n markel rates o Briees 1uch 0z

evchange rales, aquily prices, cradit spreads and/ar o

g ina loss to

&5 and eazital,
Financial insfilutlon e may by wspusea o market i in varisty of ways Markal risk espasure may ke explicit in portloiin af
miy by implinit such ax interest mbe risk dus e pismateh ol lnans and doposits: Bosidus, market risk may 350 arizsa frem activilies categonized as

satantial for foss resulting from adverze mevemant in markat risk factors such as interest sates, forey rtes, squily and gammadity pricas,
Tha Draup's swporure o market risk s prisnarky @5 accaunt of intorsst rate risk and squity prlce fig

Total markat risk exposure

ithes [ aguitias and i

interest ratnd, fareign

13 that are activiely tradil, Conver aly it
off-kalince sheet tem. Tharalors, market luk (g

(I} interestrate riske

[Farteulars A3l Morch 31, 2022 A% at March 31, 2021 Primary rigk tensitivity
ASSETS

Financial assels

[inrsiments (Other than credit suzstitules) 8,597.79 17.086.49 |Equily adce

Credit substitite: 210450 2081 81 lintereat rate

LIADILITIES

Financial fahilitia

Dol sgcifiries 1855227 18551 67 [Interest min
Bnrrowings (olher than debt securnities) 8.9R8.07 143348 llrmrs;l Al

Interest rate rik srliee when (nere 5 2 mismatch batween pasitions, which ate subject 1o interest rale adjusteert Within s specified nenod The Greup's landing, Tundirg 2rd investmant actmitiss
e Flie To interast cale ritk, The Immediate impact of variation in inferest rata is on 1he Group's net Intarast Ineoiv, while 3 fang term Impact 1s on the Greug's nalwaorth since the coonsmiz va o of
the assets, (abllitas and ofi-calance sheet exposuras arn affecled. Whils assessing interest rte risks, signals glven to the market by ABI and gavarmment fepariments from Ume ta lims and the

financial industry’s reaction ta theat shall ke cantinuausty monitored.

Due to the vary nature of finaneing, the troun i expoied 1o moderate te higher Interust rate risk, This #1% has 2 major Impaet oi he batance (heat as well 25 the [noome st3te st of the Groun.

Intarast rate lik arises due 1ol

i} Changes In regulatory or market conditions atfecting the interest fales
it} Shart term volatilily
1] Frepayment risk tranilating info 4 reinvesiment 3k

wh Anal interasi filn vitk,




ONI Flinance Private Limitod
Mates Lo the ansolidated finoncial stat 15 for the year endad March 31, 2022
(A1l Amaunt in Rs. In millions, unless otheralse stated)

Interest rate risk expolure

AsatMarch A ot March
Varrabile e Bomrmuings 8,965 53 148119
Flasil Rate Dafrmwings 18,5748 i8,551.69

Interest rate sensitivity
Tha inilawing table demenstrates the sensiiivity to a reasanably parsible change in intores rates [all zher variables being constant) of the Graup's statament of prafit and lass:

|Particulars Effect on nel prafit
) For the yaar ended For the year endet

L Aaceh M onoy | e
Cigcranre in 50 basls points 25.13 734
Tnereaie (v 50 Basis polnts ) {2519} 72{]

(] Equity price isk

Equlty prica rlak 18 the risk thal the fair value of squities changes as the fasult of changes In the level of sguity Indices and Individyal stacks. A 10 pef cent Increase in the value of the Groug's Vool
equitios at 31 fdarch 2023 would have Increazed squity by Mz, 272,01 milllans {Provioias yaar: 35 190.35 millions), An squivalent decrmasn would hava redulied In an squisalent kUt oppasite [mpact.
Further, A 10 par cank Increare In the valua of the Group's FVTPL souitios 3t 31 March 2022 would have Wnzressed profits by Rs, 726,57 millions {Previaus year Re. 1453.62 milllans), An mgideylent
decrease wau'd have resulled in an equiaiant but apposite imoact
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DM Flnanee Private Limited

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year endad March 31, 2022

{All Amount In Rs. In millions, unless etherwise stated)

impact on fairvalue of level 3 finaneial instruments measured at falr value of changes ta key assumptions
The table surmmarises the valuation teckninques togethar with the signilicant unobservabls inputs used to calculate the fair value af the Graup's level 3 assess and

Nabilities.

March 31, 2022

Fair value of Level

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable nputs

Met Wertn of thvestes Company
Discounted Projectad Cash Flows

Discounted Projected Cash Flows

Ciscaunted Projected Cash Flows
Oiscalinted Projected Cash Flows

Discounted Projected Cash Flows

Discounted Projectad Cash Flows

Instrumant price
Discount margin / spread

Discaunt margin / spread

Discount margin / spraad
Ingtrurment prica

Discount margin / spread

Riscount margin / spread

3 assets

E_JLITI:I shares in OMI Consumer Credit Privata Uimited 3.37
Compulsorily convertible debentures of Azad Enginsering Privare 531.43
Limited

Equity shares in Alehamist Asset Reconstructian Company Limited 215.76
Credit Substitules 511.24
Equity shares in Flash Elactronics Private Limited 193.97
Compulsory convertibla debentures 113813
Non-convartjble debentires - unquotad 67 an
Total 3,674.80

March 31, 2021

Fair value of Level

Valuation 1echnique

Significant unobservahle hputs

Met Worth of Investee Campany
Discounted Projected Cash Fiows

Discaunted Projected Cash Flows
Discountad Projectad Cash Flows
Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Discaunted Projected Cash Flows

Instrument price
Distount margin / spread
Discount margin f spread
Instrurment price
Discounr fmargin / spread

Discount margin / spread

4 assets
Equiry sharas in DM Cansumer Credit Private Limited .27
Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Aaconstruction Campany Limitad 216.20
Credit Substitutes A97.68
Equity shores in Flash Electranics Private Limitad 0440
Campulsory convertible debantures B26.47
Nan-eonvertible dehentures - unguoted 142.83
Tatal 2,000.85

Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable inputs

Instrument price

Civer the nature of this approach, there is no range of prices Lsed as nputs.

Discount margin/spreads

Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discauntad eash Now modals such sproads are
addad to the benchmark rate when discounting the future expectad cash lows, Hence, these spreads reduce the net present valua of an asset or increase thewalie
of @ liabllity. They generally reflect the oremium an investor expects to achievie over the benchmark Interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by the
uncertainty of the cass flows caused by the cradit quality of the assat, They can ba Implied fram marke! prices and are usually unobservable far illiquid or camplex

Instrumants.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notas to the consalidated financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amount In Rs. In millions, unless atherwise stated]

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes In unobservahle market data

The table below describes the effect of a 10% movement in the significant unohservablp input.
All changes, excent far financlal Instruments at FVOE would be reflected in Statements of Profit and Loss.

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
T Favsurable Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavecrable
changes changes changes changes

Instruments measured through FVTPL

Compulsorily convertible debentures of Azad Engineering Private Limited E9.id (53.14) ) .
Tatal (A) 63.14 (63.14) . =
Instruments measurad through FVTOCI

Equity shares in DM Consumer Credit Private Limited 0.34 {0.34) 033 0.33)

Equily sharzs in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 2158 (21.58) 22.62 (26.07)

Credit Substitutes 238 {2.38) 7.17 7.17)

Non-convertible debentures - unquoted 36.79 (36.79) 14.28 (z4.28)

Equity shares In Flash Electronics Private Limited 79.40 {79.40) 30.44 (30.44)

Compulsory convertible debentures 114.81 {114.81) B2.65 {£2.65)
Total (8] 255,30 (255.30) 157.50 (157.50)
Total (A+B) 318.44 {318.44) 157.50 (1%7.50)

Fair value of Anancial Instruments not measured at fair valus
Sct out below is a comparisan, by elass, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments Lhat are not carried at fair value in

the financial statements. This table does nat include the falr values of non-financial assets and non—financial liabilities,

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial assets: Fair value _Carrying value Fair value Carrying value
Laans and advances

Carporate loans 13,120.52 13,120.52 12,151,09 12,1:1.08
Investments — at amortised cost

Credit Substitutes 758.25 758.25 1,171.88 1,1+1.88
Financial llabilities:

Debt securities 18,553.00 18,553.00 18,553.00 18,5%3.00

Valuation methodologies of financial instrumants not measured at falr value

Bzlow are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measurad
4t fair value in the Group's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purpeses only, The below methodelogies and
assumptions relate anly to the instruments in the above tables.

Barrowings - At Amortised cost
These includes Term Laans. The falr values of such liabilities are estimated using a discounted cash Hlow model based an contractual cash flows ssing

actual or estimated yields and discounting by ylelds incarporating the counterparties’ eredit risk, These instrument are classified In Level 3.

Invastments - At amortised cost
These includes Credit substitutes & corporate loans. The fair values of such instruments are esstimated using a discounted cash flow maodel basad an

contractual cash flows using actual or estimated vyields and discounting by ylelds Incarporating the counterparties’ credit risk. Thase Instrumenc are
classified in Lovel 3,

Assets and liabilities other than above




52 {a)

52 (k)
52c)
52 {d)
52 (r)

53

DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes ta the censolidated financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Previous year /oeriods figures hava hssn tegrauped/rearranged to make them comparabls with the cyrrant vear/period classification in accordance with

antendments in Schaduls L

The eonsalidatad finaneial statements for the y2ar ended March 31, 2021 wete audited by previeus statutery auditors Walker Chandiok and Ca LLE,

Thore are no event observed aftor the reported perind which have an impact an the Group's aperaticns,

The financial statements wera approved for issue by Board of Qirectars on May 30, 2024,

Disclosure an significant ratios.

Particulars Descriptinn Az at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 20m1

Pek profic afeer tax / tatal revenue frem aperations
P 6343 3.50%

el prafit margin

[{Dabt securities+ Barrgwings (ather tan Debt

Securitios))/Toral asaets 0477 35.20%
(Gross Stage I loans EAD - impairment logs allawance

Net Non-Performing Assars far Stage 1} / {Gross total loans EAD-lmpairmant loss 0.31% 1.51%
allowance for Stage (1)

Total dabts to total assets

Asset cover ratio {no. of imes) Amount of secured assets / Securod dobt 1.79 145

{Impairment loss allowance for Stape 11/ Gross Stage
Pruvision coverage ratio (34) M loans CAD | 96.13% 62,385

Other Statutary Infarmation

1 During tha current finansial year, the Group has not under taken any tansacticns with the companies struck off under soenan 148 of Companies Act, ‘013 ar
section 560 of Companias Act, 1956,

2 Na penalties were imposed by the regulator during the year during the finantial year ended 31 March, 2022,
3 There are no such transaction which are not racorded in the bonks of account eatlier and have besen surrendered or disclosed as income during the -urrent

fitvanicial year in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961
4 The Group has nat Weaded or invested In Crypto carreney or Virtual Currency during the financial year. )
5 The Group has not recelved any fund fram any person or entity, Incluting forcign entity (Funding Party) with the understanding (whethar recarded in we 1ing or

otherwise) that the Group shall:
{a) diractly or indiractly lend or invast in othor porsons of antlties [dentifisd in any mannar whatsosver by or on hehalf of the Funding Party (U timate

Beneficlaries) or
[b} provide any guarantes, securlty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Boneficiaries
& The Group has not advanced or loaned ar Invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{iss), including foreign entities {intermediaries) with the undersanding

that the Intermediary shall
{a) diractly or indirectly lend gr invest in other persans ar entities identificd in any manner whatinever by or an behalf of the Group (LUiimate Benaficiaries) or

{b) pravide any guarantese, security ar the like ta or on behalf of the Ultimate Banaficlaries

7 Mo funds have been advanced or 'napad or invested (either fram borrowed funds or share premium ar any other saurces of kind of funds) by the Group & orin
any ather person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (“Intermadiarias”) with the understanding, whether recorded In witing ar otherwise, taat the
Intermediary shall |end or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Bensficlaries), The Group has not recsived ary fund from any party(s)
{Funding Party) with the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly o7 Indirectly lend ar invest In other persons or entities identifiad by or an behalf of
the Group {"Ultimate Beneficiarias”) or provide any guarantaa, security ar the like on hehalf of the Ultlmate Beneficiaries,

& The Group has complied with the number of layers presoribed undsr clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of _ayers)
Aules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
9 There are no transactions of undisclosed income nat recarded in the baoks of accounts.

10 No proceedings have been inidated of pending against the Group for holding any benami praperty under the Benami Transactions (Frohibition) Aet, 198E (45 of

1988] and rules made thersunder in the financial years soded March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

11 The Group has utilised the funds raised from banks and finaneial institutions for the speciiic purpass far which they ware borrewed.
12 The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks, financial i=stitution or any other endar.
13 Ma praceedings have been inftiated or pending agalnst the Group for holding any benaml| proverty under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 45 ol

1988) and rules made thereunder In the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
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